

06/09/2022 0571-01 22-MED-02-0148 41746

MASTER CONTRACT



ARCANUM-BUTLER LOCAL SCHOOLS DISTRICT

and the

ARCANUM-BUTLER CLASSROOM TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

July 1, 2022

through

June 30, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE	1
DEFINITIONS	1
ARTICLE 1 – BOARD RIGHTS	1
ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE 3 – ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	2
ARTICLE 4 – NON-DISCRIMINATION	4
ARTICLE 5 – ASSOCIATION – ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE	4
ARTICLE 6 – PERSONNEL RECORDS	5
ARTICLE 7 – PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS	5
ARTICLE 8 – WRITTEN COMPLAINTS AGAINST TEACHERS	7
ARTICLE 9 – WORKING CONDITIONS	8
ARTICLE 10 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	13
ARTICLE 11 LEAVE	16
ARTICLE 12 – TRANSFERS, VACANCIES AND PROMOTIONS	22
ARTICLE 13 - SUBSTITUTES	24
ARTICLE 14 – REDUCTION IN FORCE	25
ARTICLE 15 - FAIR DISMISSAL PROCEDURE	26
ARTICLE 16 - TEACHING CERTIFICATES/LICENSES	28
ARTICLE 17 - LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE	28
ARTICLE 18 - SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS	30
ARTICLE 19 - SALARY NOTICES	30
ARTICLE 20 - SEVERANCE	30
ARTICLE 21 - SALARY SCHEDULES	
ARTICLE 22 - GROUP INSURANCE	33
ARTICLE 23 - SAVINGS CLAUSE	36
ARTICLE 24 - NO STRIKE/LOCKOUT	36
ARTICLE 25 - NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE	37
ARTICLE 26 - NO REPRISALS	38
ARTICLE 27 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT	39
ADDENDUM A-1 – 2022-2023 CERTIFIED SALARY SCHEDULE	40
ADDENDUM A-2 – 2023-2024 CERTIFIED SALARY SCHEDULE	41
ADDENDUM A-3 – 2024-2025 CERTIFIED SALARY SCHEDULE	42

ADDENDUM B- EXTRA-CURRICULAR SALARY SCHEDULE	. 43
ADDENDUM C – GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM	. 46
ADDENDUM D – SICK LEAVE FORM	. 47
ADDENDUM E – PERSONAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM	. 48
ADDENDUM E1 – PERSONAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM WITHOUT PAY	. 49
ADDENDUM E-2 – REQUEST FOR UNUSED PERSONAL LEAVE TO BE CONVERTED T SICK LEAVE: MAXIMUM 4 DAYS	
ADDENDUM F – PROFESSIONAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM	
ADDENDUM F-1 - JURY DUTY LEAVE	. 53

PREAMBLE

The Arcanum-Butler Board of Education, hereinafter referred to as the "Board", and the Arcanum-Butler Classroom Teachers Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association", chartered by the Ohio Education Association, do hereby agree that the welfare of the children of the Arcanum-Butler Local School District is paramount in the operation of the schools and will be promoted by both parties. The parties, therefore, enter into this Agreement as hereinafter set forth, based on their respective obligations and liabilities.

Because of the above, it is understood and agreed that:

- **A.** The Board of Education, by law, has the final responsibility for establishing policy in the school district.
- **B.** The Superintendent and his staff have the responsibility for implementing the policies established by the Board.
- **C.** The Board and the Association subscribe to the principle that differences should be resolved through negotiations and/or the grievance procedure without interruption to the school program.

This Agreement supersedes any and all previous agreements between the parties hereto and is a final and complete agreement of all negotiated items that are in effect throughout the term of said Agreement. In addition, neither the Board nor the Association shall be obligated to negotiate on any item for the life of this Agreement, except as may be provided in this Agreement.

DEFINITIONS

- Full-Time = 7 hours 15 minutes (plus ninety (90) floating minutes per month)
- Half-time = 3 hours 35 minutes (plus ninety (90) floating minutes per month)
- All part-time/half-time employees shall receive a planning period
- All "days" referred to in this contract shall be working days

ARTICLE 1 – BOARD RIGHTS

The Board, by mutual agreement with the Association, commits itself to such Association recognition and other conditions of employment as incorporated in the Agreement, and the Board, on behalf of the electors of the District, retains and reserves unto itself the ultimate responsibilities for proper management of the School District conferred upon and vested in it by the Revised Code of Ohio and Constitution of the State of Ohio and the United States, including the responsibility for and the right:

- A. To maintain executive management and administrative control of the school system and its properties and facilities, and the professional activities of its employees as related to the conduct of school affairs.
- **B.** To hire all employees and, subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications, and the conditions for their continued employment, or their dismissal or demotion, and to promote, and transfer all such employees.
- **C.** To delegate authority through recognized administrative channels according to current Board policy.
- **D.** To determine job schedules, the hours of employment, and the duties, responsibilities, and assignments of employees with respect thereto, and the terms and conditions of employment.

The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authorities, duties, and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms thereof are in conformance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Ohio and the Constitution and laws of the United States.

ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION

The Association is hereby recognized as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining representative for the certificated/licensed instructional staff who, at the minimum, provide half-time service to the Board. The certificated/licensed instructional staff, as used herein, shall be limited to classroom teachers, special teachers (art, music, physical education, etc.), nurses, guidance counselors, and tutors who are in positions requiring teacher certification/licensure.

Specifically excluded from this recognition are the following: Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent(s), Principal(s), Assistant Principal(s) and other administrative or supervisory personnel. For the purpose of this Agreement, the term "other administrative or supervisory personnel" shall include but not be limited to any certificated/licensed employee having the responsibility to direct the activities of other certificated/licensed employees and the authority to hire, transfer, assign, promote, discharge or discipline other employees or have the responsibility to recommend such action.

ARTICLE 3 – ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

As the recognized representative of the teachers, the Association shall have the following rights:

A. The President of the Association shall be furnished a tentative agenda in advance of any regularly scheduled Board meeting. In the case of meetings involving important consideration

(e.g., appropriations, budget adoption, list of teachers whose contracts will be considered), the Board will supply copies upon request of such attachments to the Association President for Association study.

- **B.** Copy of official minutes of Board meetings delivered within five (5) working days.
- **C.** Use of bulletin boards in the teachers' lounges.
- **D.** Use of the public address system for announcements to members. Times for making such announcements shall be determined by the Building Principal.
- **E.** Permission to make announcements during faculty meetings.
- **F.** Use of individual teachers' mailboxes, inter-school mail, electronic mail and other technology as it develops.
- **G.** Permission to visit school buildings by the Association President, his/her designee, and/or the O.E.A. Labor Relations Consultant. Visitations shall be with permission only, shall not interfere with normal school activities and may be given by the Building Principal, the Superintendent, or the Assistant Superintendent. Permission for such visitations shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- **H.** Names of newly employed teachers shall be provided to the Association as early as practicable following Board approval of their contract. The Administration will provide addresses.
- I. Neither the Board nor the Administration will encourage or discourage membership in the Association.
- J. The Association shall be provided the following items when they become available through the office of the Treasurer:
 - 1. The Treasurer's Monthly Report of February
 - 2. Amended Official Certificate of Estimated Resources
 - 3. A copy of the Official Budget
 - 4. A copy of the Year-End Report.
 - 5. A copy of training and experience grids for the bargaining unit members.
 - 6. The Association shall be provided free of charge, copies of any public documents pertinent to negotiations.
- K. The Association shall be granted paid leave in the amount of nine (9) days to represent official Association business. The Association President shall notify the Superintendent not less than five (5) working days in advance of the person(s) who will be using Association leave and the date(s) on which it will be taken.

ARTICLE 4 – NON-DISCRIMINATION

- **A.** The parties hereto agree that neither the Board, the Administration, nor the Association shall discriminate against an employee covered hereunder because of his/her membership or non-membership in the Association or his/her activities herein prescribed.
- **B.** The Board, the Administration, the Association and each employee will cooperate fully with all applicable laws forbidding discrimination on account of race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability or political affiliation.

ARTICLE 5 – ASSOCIATION – ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

- Α. In the interests of sound contract administration and bilateral communication, a joint committee composed of the Association President and a representative from each building appointed in September of each school year, and the Superintendent and the respective principals, will convene at the request of either party to discuss subjects of concern to either party. The committee shall meet no less than one (1) time each semester during the year. It shall be the express purpose of this committee to build and maintain a climate of mutual understanding and respect in the solution of common problems. Each party shall develop an agenda of items to be discussed at the meeting and distribute it to all committee members one (1) work day in advance of the meeting. The meetings shall be alternately chaired by the parties and said meetings shall be scheduled at a time mutually convenient. The party chairing the meeting shall keep minutes and said minutes shall be distributed thereafter to all meeting participants. The Association-Administration Committee process will be assisted by a building advisory committee organized by the building principal with Association representation, to meet on an as needed basis. ABCTA building representatives will serve on the committee by virtue of office.
- **B.** The Committee will also serve as a district insurance committee. At least one meeting per year will be dedicated to reviewing medical insurance coverage and rates. The intent is to provide collaboration between the Board and the Association to monitor health care coverage and premium costs. The Superintendent will give a copy of the EPC meeting agenda to the local association president and request the EPC email list to include the local president. The Association president may take association leave to attend such meetings.
- **C.** The Association-Administration Committee will meet, as needed, to discuss the effects of implementation of any mandated legislation.
- **D.** The Association-Administration Committee and building advisory committee shall not have authority to amend the provisions of this agreement or act to waive any rights of either party, their agents or members.

ARTICLE 6 – PERSONNEL RECORDS

- **A.** The official personnel file for each teacher shall be maintained in the Board of Education office. This file shall be considered confidential.
- **B.** Such files are the property of the Board of Education and the Superintendent of Schools, the custodian of such files.
- **C.** Any negative or critical material placed in the file shall be signed and dated by the person directing its placement in the file and that staff member in whose file the material is being placed. If the staff member refuses to sign the material, such fact shall be noted. The signing of any such material by a staff member does not mean that said member concurs with the contents of the material. The employee shall have the right to answer such material and the answer shall be attached to the file copy.
- **D.** Anonymous letters or materials shall not be placed in the teachers' file, nor shall they be made a matter of record.
- **E.** Teachers shall be entitled to a copy of any material in their files, except for material originally supplied prior to employment.
- F. Teachers may periodically review their personnel files at a time mutually agreed upon by the Superintendent or his/her designated representative and the teacher involved. The teacher may request another individual to be present during the review. The Superintendent or designated representative shall be present during such review. At such time the teacher, staff member and Superintendent may mutually agree to remove material from the file.
- **G.** Documentary information outside the official personnel file which is to form the basis of a teacher's evaluation or recommended non-re-employment will be disclosed to the teacher prior to the evaluation or recommendation.
- **H.** Principals' personnel files of teachers shall be subject to the provisions of paragraphs C, D, E, and F above.
- I. Negative material shall be removed after a period of seven (7) years upon written request by the teacher.

ARTICLE 7 – PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

- **A.** Deductions shall be made from each pay check for the following:
 - 1. Federal Income Tax
 - 2. Ohio Income Tax

- 3. Municipal Income Tax, if any
- 4. School District Income Tax, if any
- 5. Ohio State Teachers Retirement System (Annuitized)
- **B.** Optional deductions may include:
 - 1. Insurance
 - 2. Tax Sheltered Annuities
 - 3. Association Dues
 - 4. Credit Unions
 - 5. United Way
 - 6. OEA-EPAC
 - 7. YMCA Membership
- **C.** Association dues shall be deducted from those teachers who individually and voluntarily authorize such deductions and turn over such authorization to the Treasurer. New authorizations and any changes in amounts other than unified dues will require the submission of a new authorization form to the Treasurer by September 15. Deductions shall be in equal amounts, and shall commence in the first payroll period in October of each school year and continue thereafter for twenty (20) successive pay periods. Such authorization shall continue in effect until such time that said teacher gives written notice to the Treasurer of the Board and the Association to discontinue such deductions or employment with the Board terminates. Any amount withheld hereunder shall be transmitted to the Association. The Association agrees to indemnify and save the Board and/or its representatives harmless against any and all claims that may arise out of or by reason of action taken by the Board in carrying out the provisions of this section.
- D. Employees shall receive their pay in twenty-four (24) equal pay checks. Pay dates will be scheduled on the fifth (5th) and the twentieth (20th) of each month, except for when the pay date falls on a weekend or holiday. In such event, the pay date will be scheduled for the day immediately prior to the holiday or weekend. Pay will be transferred electronically to their financial institution. Employees may elect to receive direct deposit notices by electronic mail.
- E. Dues Deduction/Payroll

The Board agrees to deduct ABCTA, WOEA/OEA/NEA dues plus other deduction mutually agreed upon by the ABCTA and the Board where the employee authorizes the Board. Authorization for these deductions for a school year must be made by the employee in writing to the Treasurer on or before October 1.

The Board recognizes the ABCTA as a teacher professional organization (TPO) and in accordance with Section 4117.01 Revised Code and the STRS Board Rule 3307-6-01, agrees to make ABCTA office stipend payments through the regular ABLSD payroll at no additional cost of the Board.

The ABCTA shall reimburse the Board's contribution cost for the STRS payment and the Board's cost for Medicare, if applicable, on behalf of each ABCTA officer who requests this option.

The Treasurer of the ABCTA shall deposit the stipend and reimbursements to the ABLSD Treasurer by June 1 of each year, and stipend payments to ABCTA officers shall be made by June 30. The ABCTA Treasurer will itemize the stipend and reimbursement amounts.

The ABCTA officer stipend amount, based upon the ABCTA Constitution and By Laws, is for terms of service of one (1) year from July 1 through June 30.

ARTICLE 8 – WRITTEN COMPLAINTS AGAINST TEACHERS

In the event that a written complaint against a teacher is received by a Board of Education member(s), or other administrator, the written complaint will be referred to the Superintendent. The Superintendent will deal with any written complaint received from Board members or directly from a community member by referring the matter to the appropriate building Principal for investigation. If the written complaint is resolved by the administration, the teacher involved will be informed of the complaint and its resolution. Anonymous complaints will be given no weight unless the anonymous complaint is substantiated through an investigation by the Superintendent or designee. In the event that any parent (or citizen) has a written complaint with a teacher that cannot be resolved by the administration, the following steps shall be followed:

Step 1

Appointment for conference between parent and teacher in a formal setting.

- a. Unless it is an emergency as defined by the principal or designee, the teacher has the option of conducting the conference on the same day or may request that up to a one-day notice be provided regarding the conference with the parent.
- b. If the conference needs to be held outside of the teacher's regular school day (time on duty), the principal shall attempt to establish a time for the conference that is mutually agreeable to both parties concerned.

Step 2

Formal meeting involving building principal, teacher, and parent. Problem may be reduced to writing on the parental complaint form, if necessary.

Step 3

In the event the complaint is not resolved, the Superintendent shall arrange a meeting at a mutually agreeable time of the following people: the Superintendent, the complainant, the teacher(s) involved, an Association Representative if requested by the teacher, and the Principal.

ARTICLE 9 – WORKING CONDITIONS

A. Contract Year/School Calendar

- 1. The normal teacher contract year will not exceed 184 days. Teachers new to the district may be expected to attend introductory meetings on the day before the first regularly scheduled teacher meeting without pay.
- 2. The Superintendent will submit a proposed calendar to the Association for review and comment prior to enacting the school calendar. Final decisions on the calendar rest with the Board of Education.

B. Teachers' Day

- The contract day for all full-time bargaining unit members shall be a continuous period of 7 hours and 15 minutes, scheduled between the hours of 7:20 a.m. and 3:40 p.m., including a 30-minute duty-free lunchtime. Unit members may be permitted to leave the premises during lunchtime with advance notice to the Building Principal or designee. Variations may be made in the regular contract day to allow for different schedules for parent/teacher conferences.
- 2. In addition to the contract day, teachers shall be required to work ninety (90) floating minutes per month outside of the contract day to be scheduled in increments of no less than thirty (30) minutes. The floating minutes will be scheduled as determined by the Superintendent by the first day of school and shall be used for planning or professional development. The floating minutes shall be scheduled on regular school days.
- 3. Days on which there is a delay, teachers will not be required to report to work until fifteen (15) minutes prior to the beginning of school.
- 4. Should any permanent change in the normal beginning and ending times of the regular school day be necessary, the Association-Administration Committee shall meet to discuss any changes prior to implementation of such changes.

- 5. Each certificated/licensed staff member shall be scheduled so as to receive at least 200 minutes of planning/conference time per normal work week. Planning/conference time shall be scheduled in blocks of time no less than 15 minutes each. Such planning/conference time will be scheduled equitably among staff in each level; high school, middle school, and elementary. All part-time/half-time employees shall receive a planning period.
- 6. Staff who voluntarily agree to morning supervision duty or bus duty which extends their contractual workday will receive compensatory time on an hour for hour basis.
- 7. Calamity Days

When the Superintendent decides to close the school on account of a calamity or emergency staff shall not report to work, and the following procedures shall apply.

- a. The first five (5) calamity days of any school year shall not be made up and are without any loss of wages or fringe benefits.
- b. Upon annual Board approval, calamity days six (6), seven (7) and eight (8), individual teachers shall prepare blizzard bag/Electronic Day ("eDay") lessons.
- c. Teachers are not required to report to school on calamity days six (6) through eight (8), but shall be available via email for questions regarding the assignments. Days six (6) seven (7) and eight (8) are considered work days.
- d. Beginning with calamity day nine (9) and beyond, teachers shall not report to school on each calamity day, but are required to report on make-up days as determined by the Superintendent.

C. Teacher Contracts

Employees holding appropriate licensure will generally be issued limited contracts as follows:

- 1. All teachers new to the district will be issued a limited contract with duration of one (1) year.
- 2. All teachers who have completed two (2) limited contracts of one (1) year duration, if re-employed, will be issued one (1) limited contract of two (2) years duration.
- 3. All teachers who successfully complete two (2) limited contracts of one (1) year duration, and one (1) limited contract of two (2) years duration, if re-employed, will be issued a limited contract of three (3) years duration.

The above sequence is not mandatory. The Superintendent has the discretion to interrupt this general sequence with any given teacher, and to issue contracts of lesser or greater length, depending upon the situation.

- 4. Upon the request of the teacher, a contract of lesser years may be granted. A written notice of intent must be filed with the Superintendent's Office prior to March 1 of the school year in which the teacher's contract expires.
- 5. Documentation of additional training in the form of a submission of a transcript verifying all earned semester hours which would advance an employee on the salary schedule shall be presented to the Board Treasurer on or before September 15 and January 30 of any school year. The Treasurer shall advance the affected employee at the beginning of the second semester of the school year for the January 30 advancement date.
- 6. On a salary schedule, the "M.A." column means that the teacher received an M.A. degree in education or a related field.
- 7. On the salary schedule the "150" column means a total of 150 semester hours (graduate or undergraduate) completed before or after receiving the B.A. degree. "M.A. +20" means 20 semester hours of graduate credit hours completed in education or a related field after receiving a M.A. degree.

Hours for advancement on the salary schedule must be approved by the Superintendent or his or her designee. However, coursework will be generally approved provided the work is in an accredited institution in the field of education. It is recommended that any coursework in question be approved by the Superintendent prior to the class starting.

D. Continuing Contract Eligibility

1. Employees will be considered for continuing contract based on the requirements set forth in Ohio law. An employee wishing to be considered for continuing contract must notify the responsible administrator and Superintendent of this desire in writing by September 30 in the year preceding the Board action to grant a continuing contract. Employees expecting to receive a continuing contract must meet all criteria, including transcripts, CEUs and licensure and have provided evidence of same to the Superintendent on or before March 1. An employee being recommended for continuing contract must be recommended in writing and the recommendation must be attached to the employee's "Teacher Evaluation Form." In the event an employee becomes eligible for continuing contract during the term of a multi-year limited contract, the Superintendent may agree to consider the employee during that year or may elect to wait until the year in which the multi-year limited contract expires to consider the employee for continuing contract.

2. An employee who has met all requirements to become eligible for continuing contract but who has, in the opinion of the responsible administrator or Superintendent, certain other deficiencies, shall be notified of such deficiencies in writing by the Superintendent on or before June 1. At the recommendation of the Superintendent, such employee may be issued a probationary contract for a period of one year. If re-employed at the end of this probationary contract, the employee shall be issued a continuing contract. This probationary contract provision shall supersede and replace the extended limited contract procedures contained in Ohio Revised Code §3319.11(c).

E. Academic Freedom

The Board shall recognize that Academic Freedom is essential to the teaching profession. Academic Freedom is the right of the learner and teacher to explore and present divergent points of view.

F. Complaints on Materials or Curriculum

- 1. In the event any citizen has a complaint or question concerning materials or methods used in conjunction with a class, or materials in the Media Center, the following procedures shall be utilized:
 - a) Any complaints concerning a program or instructional materials shall be given to the Building Principal, who will notify the teacher involved.
 - b) All complaints shall be reduced to written form.
 - c) The written complaint will be examined by a Review Committee that will include the teacher and/or librarian and Building Principal.
 - d) Appeal of the Review Committee's decision will be through the Superintendent to the Board of Education.
- 2. In no case shall materials be removed until this procedure and any appropriate Board Policy provisions have been followed.

G. Inclusion

- 1. The term "inclusion" shall mean the placement of special needs students whose least restrictive environment has been determined to include the regular education classroom.
- 2. When possible, teachers who have included students and teachers who will be assigned a specific included student shall participate in development of the IEP. Otherwise, the teacher will have access to the IEP prior to the beginning of the school year. Principals shall give teachers release time to work on IEP development during the normal teacher workday.

- 3. The specific classroom assignment of included students shall be made on an equitable basis by the Superintendent or his/her designee after input from the teaching staff.
- 4. The Board shall fund appropriate professional development in accordance with Article 11 and 17.
- 5. Bargaining unit members who are responsible for dispensing or administering medication and/or performing medical procedures will be properly certified/licensed and trained.
- 6. The regular education teacher, or any teacher involved in a student's placement can request an IEP committee meeting to review the placement of a student. Prior to said request, the teacher is expected to discuss the situation with the other teacher(s) involved, appropriate county office personnel, the school psychologist, and the building principal in an attempt to resolve the issue.

H. Class Size

The Administration will make an effort to establish and maintain the most favorable class size possible, consistent with the financial condition of the school district, state department of education guidelines, and in accordance with Board policy.

I. Resident Educator Program

If at any time, the County Office is unable to continue to operate the Resident Educator Program, negotiations will be reopened on this issue only, so long as the Resident Educator Program is still a State requirement.

J. College Credit Plus

The opportunity to teach any course offered by the school district through College Credit Plus shall be offered to all members of the bargaining unit who are qualified to teach the course and no outside employees shall be solicited until all members of the bargaining unit have refused.

- 1. Teaching a course that qualifies for College Credit Plus shall be voluntary on the part of the teacher and no teaching employee shall be forced to meet the requirements to teach the course.
- 2. Any teacher who teaches a course that qualifies for College Credit Plus shall be afforded an in-service day to visit the participating institution of higher education to engage in planning with the cooperating college instructor and any other day as required by the college/university. The teacher shall be paid his/her per diem rate of pay for the inservice day, plus mileage at the IRS rate. The district shall pay the costs for employees to be trained as an adjunct instructor at Arcanum High School.

- 3. Courses offered for College Credit Plus shall be determined by May 1 of each school year for the following school year.
- 4. The District shall pay all tuition costs, fees, and supplies for College Credit Plus ("CCP") certification coursework for teachers who need CCP certification in order to comply with the requirements of the Ohio Department of Education, the Ohio Board of Regents, the District's partnering college(s), or the Ohio Revised Code. Payment of CCP certification coursework shall come from the Educational Expenses outlined in Article 17 F. Any teacher who desires to seek payment for CCP certification coursework tuition costs, fees, and supplies must submit an application in advance to the Superintendent. The decision to grant or deny payment for CCP certification coursework shall be solely at the discretion of the Superintendent. Payment for coursework will be provided upon completion of the class and submission of transcripts showing a passing grade.
- 5. Any ABCTA bargaining unit members teaching CCP courses shall receive a stipend of two hundred fifty dollars (\$250.00) per course, per semester. Such payment will not include a second section of the same course. *Minimum enrollment number of five (5) students. The high school guidance counselor shall receive an annual stipend of five hundred dollars (\$500). Payment shall be made at the end of each school year.

Examples:	1 st Semester	2 nd Semester	Total Payment
Teacher A	Class 101	Class 201	\$500
Teacher B	Class 301	Class 301	\$250
Teacher C	Class 401 (full year course)		\$500

ARTICLE 10 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. Definitions

- 1. A grievance is a complaint of an employee or the Association involving the alleged violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of a provision(s) of this Agreement.
- 2. A grievant shall mean the Association, a person or group alleging that some violation of this Agreement has actually occurred. A grievance alleged to be a "group" grievance shall have arisen out of substantially similar circumstances affecting each member of said group.
- 3. No grievance may be filed concerning a matter that may be made the subject of a charge with a State or Federal Agency.

4. Any action by the Board to terminate, renew or not renew the contract of any professional staff member, whether such professional staff member is under a limited or continuing contract with the Board, or any recommendation by the Superintendent to terminate, renew or not renew any such contract shall not be deemed a grievance and may not be processed as such.

B. Procedure

Step 1 – Informal Procedure

The aggrieved party shall discuss the grievance or complaint with the building principal or designee in a face-to-face meeting. This shall be accomplished within ten (10) days after the grievant knows or should have known the act or conditions on which the grievance is based. In no event, however, may a grievance be filed more than thirty (30) days following the date of the occurrence from which the grievance arose. Failure to raise the alleged grievance as herein provided shall be considered as a waiver of the rights granted in this Article.

Step 2 – Formal Procedure

If a satisfactory solution is not affected, the aggrieved party shall present his/her written grievance to the principal within ten (10) days after the informal hearing. The principal shall, within ten (10) days of receipt of the grievance, conduct a hearing concerning the grievance. The principal shall advise or counsel the aggrieved party and shall provide a written answer to the grievance and forward it to the concerned parties within ten (10) days from the time of the hearing.

Step 3 – Superintendent

If a satisfactory solution is not affected, the Association shall invoke Step III in writing and present same to the Superintendent within ten (10) days after receiving the Step II answer. Any failure to invoke Step III as provided herein will be considered as the parties having reached a satisfactory resolution of the alleged grievance. The Superintendent shall decide whether to personally handle this Step of the grievance or delegate responsibility within ten (10) days of receipt of the grievance, and shall notify the concerned parties accordingly. The Superintendent or his/her designated representative shall then conduct a grievance hearing, and shall provide a written answer to the grievance and forward it to the concerned parties within ten (10) days from the time of the hearing.

Step 4 – Arbitration

If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step III, the Association may demand that the issue be submitted to arbitration within ten (10) days after the receipt of the written notice of the action taken by the Superintendent. The Arbitrator shall be selected from a list submitted to both parties by the American Arbitration Association. The American

Arbitration Association (AAA) will provide the parties with a panel of fifteen (15) arbitrators. Within ten (10) days of the mailing of the panel, each party shall cross off any names from their respective lists and number the remaining names indicating the order of preference. The lists shall be mailed separately to AAA. From among the persons who have been approved on both lists, and in accordance with the designated order of mutual preference, AAA shall appoint an Arbitrator. If the parties fail to agree upon any persons named or if those named decline or are unable to serve, or if for any other reason the appointment cannot be made from the submitted list, AAA shall submit one additional panel of fifteen (15) arbitrators to the parties. If no arbitrator has been selected through AAA, the Superintendent and the Association will discuss the appointment of an arbitrator outside the auspices of AAA. If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, the Superintendent or his/her designee and the Association will jointly request AAA to provide the parties with a panel of three (3) arbitrators. Within ten (10) days of the mailing of the panel, each party shall notify AAA and the Superintendent or the Association, whichever the case may be, of any strikes for cause, as defined by the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules of the AAA. At the expiration of ten (10) days, AAA will appoint an arbitrator from the list of three. The Arbitrator shall have no power to alter, add to, or subtract from the terms of the Agreement, nor to make any award that is inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement or contrary to law. The Arbitrator shall make his report and recommendations to the grievant, the Superintendent, the Association President, and the Board President. The Arbitrator's award will, where possible, be rendered within thirty (30) days of the arbitration hearing on the merits of the issue. His/her decision shall be final and binding on the parties, and the cost of the Arbitrator's services shall be shared equally by the Association and the Board. Implementation of the Arbitrator's decision will be made in a timely fashion.

C. Miscellaneous Provision

- 1. The aggrieved teacher, the Board, and/or the representative of either shall not be denied the right to advice, counsel, and/or representation at Step II or above.
- 2. A grievance may be withdrawn at any level without prejudice and no record of same shall be maintained in the grievant's personnel file.
- 3. If the teacher and/or Association do not abide by the time limits set forth, they forfeit their right to continue to the next step of the grievance procedure, unless an extension in time is otherwise agreed upon by both parties.
- 4. If the Administrator does not abide by the time limits set forth, the teacher filing the grievance and/or the Association may proceed to the next step.
- 5. There will be no reprisals taken against any participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- 6. Mutually agreed informal meetings between the parties may be held during the time between steps in an effort to affect a satisfactory resolution to the problem.

- 7. Any time limits or steps herein before set forth may be waived by the mutual written consent of the parties.
- 8. All days referred to herein shall be working days.

ARTICLE 11 -- LEAVE

A. Sick Leave

 <u>Accumulation</u>. A full-time teacher shall be entitled to one and one-fourth (1-1/4) days of sick leave per calendar month of completed service, unless on a leave of absence, or a total of fifteen (15) days per year, subject to the maximum accumulation listed below. Half-time teachers shall have a pro rata portion of the above benefits.

Maximum Accumulation of Sick Leave Days

School Year	<u>Maximum Days</u>
2022-2023	284
2023-2024	284
2024-2025	284

2. Uses. For absences due to personal illness, any disabling complications of pregnancy or childbirth, recovery from childbirth, injury, exposure to contagious disease which could be communicated to other employees or to students, medical or dental appointments, when such cannot be scheduled during non-working hours, and to illness, injury or death in the teacher's immediate family. The immediate family shall be defined as the teacher's mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, grandchild, mother-in-law, fatherin-law, brother, sister, husband, wife, child, step-parent or step-child, son or daughterin-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, foster parent or child, or person living as a permanent resident of the teacher's household. Leave to attend the funeral of a teacher's husband, wife, or child shall be limited to up to ten (10) consecutive school days. Regarding the remainder of the teacher's immediate family, leave to attend such funeral shall be limited to five (5) consecutive school days. To attend the funeral of any other relative not mentioned above, the leave shall be limited to two (2) days if the travel distance to the funeral is less than 200 miles one way and three (3) days if it is more than 200 miles one way. Distance shall be calculated from the employee's current official residence as is on record in the Central Office to the funeral of the deceased person. Proof of such distance shall be the responsibility of the employee. An estimate of the length of time the teacher will be off must be provided to

the teacher's principal whenever possible. Sick leave must be taken in one-half or whole day increments.

- 3. <u>Responsibility</u>. All teachers shall be responsible for notifying their Building Principal or his/her designee when sick leave is to be used. Failure to notify the appropriate person is grounds for denial of benefits. A doctor's note verifying personal illness will be required for more than five (5) successive days of sick leave. Teachers are to contact their Building Administrator or his/her designee no later than 7:00 a.m. when sick leave is to be used. The principal's office should be notified each day during school hours if a substitute will be needed the following day. All teachers are to complete a sick leave form for the use of sick leave no later than five (5) days following the last day leave is used.
- 4. <u>False Claim</u>. No payment of salary or benefits will be made for an unauthorized absence, and/or abuse of sick leave benefits. An unauthorized absence and/or sick leave abuse may be considered as grounds for disciplinary action.
- 5. <u>Advancements</u>. A returning teacher or a newly employed teacher who has not accumulated sick leave credits, shall be advanced ten (10) sick leave days. Said advance shall be charged against the sick leave he/she subsequently accumulates. No benefit shall be paid hereunder unless the teacher is physically able to earn subsequent sick leave credits.
- 6. <u>Emergency Closing</u>. Should the schools be closed during the period of a teacher's sick leave by an "emergency" day or holiday, as called by the Superintendent, such teacher will not be charged with a sick leave day.

B. Donation of Sick Leave for Catastrophic Illness or Injury

A teacher who has a catastrophic illness or critical injury and who has exhausted all accumulated paid leave may be granted additional paid leave through donation of sick leave by other teachers. The "catastrophic illness or critical injury" must be unusual, extraordinary, sudden, an unexpected manifestation of the forces of nature which cannot be prevented by human care, skill or foresight. A teacher requesting donation of sick leave from other teachers shall make an application in writing to the Association-Administration Committee, which will meet and make a determination on the application. The application must include the following:

- 1. The nature of the catastrophic illness or critical injury;
- 2. Physician(s) diagnosis and prognosis of the catastrophic illness or critical injury;
- 3. Projected date of return to duty;
- 4. Any other pertinent information the applicant can submit to the Committee for its consideration.

If the application is granted, the Association will request donations of sick leave from other teachers, and each teacher willing to donate a day of sick leave shall notify the Association in writing, and the Association will notify the Treasurer in writing. The Association will keep a record of the order in which the donations were received. The number of days requested donated and used by the teacher shall not exceed thirty (30) days. The days shall be deducted on a first-come, first-serve basis, and notice will be given by the Treasurer to the Employee donating sick leave, if such leave is used. Donated and used sick leave days will not be repaid, and will be permanently subtracted from the employee donating such days. A teacher may not donate more than one (1) day per occurrence, with a maximum donation of (3) day(s) of sick leave per school year. The decision of the Association-Administration Committee shall be final, and may not be made the subject of a grievance pursuant to Article 10, Grievance Procedure.

C. Personal Leave

- 1. Subject to the conditions set forth herein, all teachers covered hereunder shall be eligible to receive up to four (4) days of personal leave each school year without loss of salary. The personal leave days granted under the provisions above shall be in addition to any earned sick leave benefits to which a teacher may be entitled and shall not be charged against any sick leave accumulation which may have accrued.
- 2. <u>Use of Personal Leave</u>. Such personal leave must be taken in one-half or whole day increments. All personal leave will be considered unrestricted personal leave days, except that such unrestricted days may not be used for job hunting or working for pay.
- 3. <u>Application for Personal Leave</u>. The notice of intent to use personal leave shall be submitted to the Principal/Supervisor for approval not less than three (3) days prior to the date of use, except in the case of an emergency. Personal leave shall not be unreasonably denied.
- <u>Restrictions on the Use of Personal Leave</u>. Personal leave may not be taken, except in emergency or other situations as determined by the Superintendent or his/her designee:
 - a) On the last work day before or the first work day after any holiday.
 - b) On the last work day before or the first work day after any approved vacation.
 - c) During the ten (10) calendar days immediately prior to and the ten (10) calendar day period after the opening or closing days of any school year.
 - d) When ten percent (10%) of the total staff on any given date is absent unless extenuating circumstances merit approval by the Superintendent. Leave requests hereunder shall not be unreasonably denied.
 - e) Not to be taken in succession of more than two (2) days.

- 5. Any abuse of the personal leave benefits may constitute just cause for disciplinary action.
- 6. Should the school be closed during the period of a teacher's personal leave by an "emergency day" as called by the Superintendent, such teacher will not be charged with a personal day, if there has been no cost to the Board.
- 7. Compensation for unused personal leave: Unused personal leave will be reimbursed at a rate of \$100 per day.
- 8. A bargaining unit member may choose, in lieu of receiving a bonus for not using personal leave, to the conversion of unused personal leave to sick leave. If an employee chooses sick leave conversion, that employee may convert up to four (4) personal days, including half days. The employee must notify the District Treasurer of their choice of personal leave conversion to sick leave by May 15. Any discrepancy or day used after May 15 will be subtracted from the days to be converted.

D. Assault Leave

- 1. The Board assures teachers that it will put its full support behind the discipline procedures and policies hereinafter recommended and adopted by the Board in matters of student discipline. It is recognized and agreed that there is a continuing need to review student discipline policies and procedures by mutual study.
- 2. All cases of threat or assault to teachers shall be immediately reported to the principal. The teacher and the principal shall cooperate with police and judicial authorities with respect to the decision to file criminal charges as well as in any subsequent judicial proceeding, if necessary. Teachers will receive time off with no loss in pay for time spent in judicial proceedings as requested by police or judicial officers.
- 3. If a teacher suffers incapacitation from normal duties as a result of battery in performance of contractual duties, and, if the teacher elects, application may be made for a determination of benefits pursuant to the Ohio Worker's Compensation Act in lieu of utilization of sick leave benefits. Also, if needed, the affected teacher will be granted up to seven (7) days of assault leave, not to be deducted from sick leave, to receive medical attention and recuperate from injuries. If the recuperation period extends beyond seven (7) days, sick leave may be utilized.

E. Jury Duty Leave

1. A teacher shall be released from all duties and responsibilities at the school when appointed to serve as a juror or court subpoenaed witness, and such services conflict with school duties. This is to be in effect only as long as the teacher is on the jury or required to appear as a subpoenaed witness. The teacher shall be paid the difference

between regular salary and the remuneration received for serving as a juror or subpoenaed witness. Such leave shall not be deducted from any other type of leave.

 Certification of compensation while in service as a juror or court subpoenaed witness must be obtained as well as the length of time involved before payment can be made. It shall be the responsibility of the teacher to obtain such certification of service and amount of pay and to file same with the Treasurer.

F. Professional Leave

- 1. At the discretion of the Superintendent, professional leave days may be granted for the purpose of attending professional meetings in connection with extra-curricular or instructional duties.
- 2. When granted, teachers will be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred subject to the maximums set forth below.
 - a) Travel Mileage reimbursement at the prevailing IRS rate for round trip mileage or air coach rate, whichever is approved.
 - b) Housing Not to exceed \$135.00 per night. Amounts in excess of this amount must be approved by Building Principal and Superintendent. Teachers are encouraged to share accommodations whenever possible.
 - c) Meals Not to exceed \$50.00 per day.
 - d) Parking fees, as required.
 - e) Registration fees, as required.
- 3. Application must be made on the approved form and signed by the Principal and Superintendent at least one (1) week in advance of the planned professional leave, unless otherwise waived by the Superintendent. All mileage and professional expenses shall be filed with the Treasurer no later than 30 days following the last date on which the expenses were incurred. The teachers shall include itemized receipts or bills for those expenditures for which reimbursement is requested.
- 4. Should the school be closed during the period of a teacher's professional meeting attendance by an "emergency day", as called by the Superintendent, such teacher will not be charged with a professional day, if the teacher is unable to attend the meeting and the Board has paid no money towards that meeting.

G. Unpaid Leave

1. <u>Disability Leave</u>. Upon the written request of a teacher, the Board may grant an unpaid leave of absence for a period of not more than two (2) consecutive school years for a purpose not otherwise set forth in this Agreement, and shall grant such leave where personal illness, complications arising from the pregnancy of an employee, or other

disability of the employee is the reason for the request. Upon subsequent request, such leave may be renewed by the Board. Without request, the Board may grant similar leaves of absence and renewals thereof to any teacher because of physical or mental disability, but such teacher may have a hearing on such unrequested leave of absence or its renewal in accordance with §3319.16 of the Ohio Revised Code. At their own expense, teachers may continue their insurance coverage, providing the insurance company or hospital service association involved permits continuance of coverage. Upon the return to service of a teacher at the expiration of such leave, he/she shall assume the contract status that he/she held prior to such leave. A leave of absence does not eliminate seniority.

- 2. Professional Improvement Leave. A full-time teacher who has completed five (5) years of service may, with the permission of the Board and the Superintendent, be entitled to take a leave of absence for one (1) or two (2) semesters subject to the following restrictions: The teacher shall present to the Superintendent for approval, a plan for professional growth prior to such a grant of permission, and at the conclusion of the leave provide evidence that the plan was followed. The teacher shall be required to return to the District at the end of the leave for a period of at least one (1) year, if requested by the Board, unless the teacher has completed twenty-five (25) years of teaching in this State. The Board shall not grant such a leave unless there is available a satisfactory substitute, nor grant such leaves to more than five percent (5%) of the professional staff at any one time, nor grant a leave longer than one (1) school year, nor grant a leave to any teacher more than once for each five (5) years of service, nor grant a leave a second time to the same individual when other members of the staff have filed a request for such a leave. At their own expense, teachers may continue their insurance coverage, providing the insurance company or hospital service association involved permits continuance of coverage. Upon the return to service of a teacher at the expiration of such leave, he/she shall assume the contract status that he/she held prior to such leave. A leave of absence does not eliminate seniority.
- 3. <u>Military Leave</u>. Any regular member who may be conscripted into the defense forces of the United States for service or training shall be granted a military leave. Such members shall be reinstated into a position in the school system with full credit, including the annual increments under the salary schedule upon written request supported by competent proof that they are fully qualified to perform the duties of the position. The application for reinstatement shall be made within 90 days after discharge. The Board may suspend the contract of the teacher whose services become unnecessary by reason of the return of a teacher from service in the armed services or auxiliaries thereof, in accordance with §3319.17 of the Ohio Revised Code.

H. Family and Medical Leave Act Leave

A teacher shall be granted up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid Family and Medical Leave Act leave in accordance with federal law. Such leave shall be in conjunction with and not in addition to other available leave.

I. Perfect Attendance Incentive

While the Arcanum Butler Board of Education realizes that there are very legitimate reasons for the use of sick leave and personal leave, the Board agrees to pay a "perfect attendance incentive" of \$85.00 per quarter for the first three quarters and \$110 for the last quarter to each full-time certified/licensed employee who is not absent from his/her assigned duties on a contractual day (except for approved professional leave) during the specified time period. The "perfect attendance incentive" shall be paid for each nine weeks on the first pay date following the last contractual day of the quarter.

ARTICLE 12 – TRANSFERS, VACANCIES AND PROMOTIONS

- A. Any request by an employee covered hereunder for a transfer to a different class, building or position shall be made in writing through the Principal to the Superintendent on or before April 1 of each calendar year. Transfer requests shall set forth the reasons for requesting such a transfer.
- B. All vacancies in teaching, supplemental, or administrative positions shall be posted through email for not less than five (5) work days, when possible, prior to the position being filled. During summer months, a list of vacancies shall be sent through email to all certificated/licensed staff. The application deadline will be noted on the emailing. A vacancy exists when one of the following has occurred:
 - 1. A resignation of a teacher or administrative contract has been accepted by the Board of Education.
 - 2. A teacher's or administrator's employment (as per his/her teacher or administrative contract) has been non-renewed or terminated by the Board of Education.
 - 3. The Board of Education has acted to create a new teaching or administrative position.
- **C.** Employees requesting transfers as provided for in this Article shall, upon the submission of a written request to the Superintendent, be afforded the opportunity for an interview with the Superintendent or his/her designee.

- D. Transfers may also be made upon the initiation of the Administration for reasons that will serve the best interests of the District. When such a transfer is initiated by the Administration, the Superintendent or his/her designee will hold a conference with the teacher to notify him/her of the reason(s) for the transfer. Such transfers or reassignments after notification of assignment will be made as infrequently as possible. Insofar as possible, assignments shall correlate with the individual's total qualifications. Seniority may also be considered. Changes in assignments may be discussed with the Superintendent.
- E. The Board shall fill vacancies in the following manner:
 - 1. The District's determination as to which applicant will fill a vacancy will be based on the relative qualifications and abilities of the applicants.
 - 2. Current employees will receive a preference, but only when the qualifications and abilities of the applicants are equal.
 - 3. Seniority shall only be a factor when judging between two employees of equal qualifications and abilities.
- **F.** Rehiring of Retired Teachers: In the event the Board hires or rehires a teacher who has retired and is receiving benefits from a public retirement system, whether retired from within or outside the District, the following provisions will apply:
 - 1. <u>Re-Employment</u>. The parties are committed to recruiting and hiring the best qualified teachers to fill vacancies. Rehire of retired teachers is not automatic. Retired teachers must apply for each vacancy for which they wish to be considered, and compete with other applicants as a part of the selection process.
 - 2. <u>Break in Service and Seniority</u>. Retirement of a teacher from the District will be considered a break in service, and a teacher who is later rehired will be considered a newly hired teacher. Such a teacher will not acquire seniority, and will not have recall rights in the event the teacher is subject to a reduction in force.
 - 3. <u>Placement on Salary Schedule</u>. A retired teacher who is hired or rehired will be given credit for a minimum of five (5) and a maximum of ten (10) years of experience, and the appropriate educational degree level, for purposes of placement on the salary schedule. This provision expressly supersedes Ohio Rev. Code §3317.13 and other applicable laws.
 - 4. <u>Sick Leave</u>. A teacher who retires and is subsequently reemployed by the Board will begin employment with zero (0) days of accumulated sick leave, and will accrue and accumulate sick leave in accordance with the provisions of Article 11 of this Agreement. The Board may advance a re-employed teacher up to five (5) days of sick leave. Such a teacher is not eligible to convert sick leave to severance pay pursuant to Article 20 of this Agreement upon subsequent retirement. In addition, such a teacher is not eligible

for the retirement incentive pursuant to Article 20 of this Agreement. This provision expressly supersedes Ohio Revised Code §124.39 and all other applicable laws.

- 5. <u>Insurance Benefits</u>. A teacher who retires and is subsequently reemployed by the Board will be eligible for any of the insurance plans offered by the Board.
- 6. <u>Contract</u>.
 - a. A retired teacher who is hired or rehired will be employed on a limited contract for a term of one (1) year. Such contract will expire automatically by its own terms at the end of the school year, without the necessity of a resignation from the teacher, or without the necessity of Board action. Such teacher shall not be deemed reemployed when notice of non-renewal is not given. Any further employment of the teacher will be pursuant to Paragraph 2 of this Section. This provision expressly supersedes Ohio Revised Code §3319.11 and all other applicable laws.
 - b. A retiree will not be eligible for continuing contract. This provision expressly supersedes Ohio Revised Code §3319.08 and all other applicable laws.

ARTICLE 13 - SUBSTITUTES

Every reasonable effort shall be made to acquire or recruit properly certified substitutes for any teacher who is unable to cover scheduled classes. A teacher shall not be required to cover an additional class unless the Superintendent and/or Principal deem it necessary after making a reasonable effort to acquire such substitutes. In the event such assignment is made, the following compensation will apply:

- A. At the elementary school level, in the event that a substitute cannot be secured and it becomes necessary for students to be temporarily assigned to another teacher's classroom for a half day or whole day, resulting in a teacher having a double class, the teacher shall be compensated at the appropriate substitute teacher rate of pay.
- B. If a substitute cannot be secured and a teacher is asked to cover another teacher's class, resulting in cancellation of the teacher's planning period or the assumption of a second assignment resulting in a double class/assignment the same class period, the teacher shall be compensated at the rate of \$30.00 per period.

ARTICLE 14 – REDUCTION IN FORCE

A. When, by reason of decreased enrollment of pupils, return to duty of regular teachers after leaves of absences, lack of funds, changes in the course offerings, or by reason of suspension of schools or territorial changes affecting the district, the Board of Education decides that it will be necessary to reduce the number of teachers, it may make a reasonable reduction. When possible, any RIF shall be implemented at the beginning of a school year. When possible, RIF shall be accomplished by attrition.

In making any such reduction, the Board shall proceed to suspend contracts in accordance with the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools who shall, within each teaching field affected, give preference to teachers on continuing contracts. The Superintendent shall make a recommendation to the Board to eliminate positions based on the Board evaluations policy and operational needs of the District. Once the positions to be eliminated are identified, the Superintendent shall recommend to the Board the teachers whose contracts shall be suspended. This recommendation shall be made at the discretion of the Superintendent, but the Superintendent shall take into account teachers' skill levels based on the teacher's recent evaluations and additional factors. The Board shall not give preference to any teacher based on seniority, except when making a decision between teachers who have comparable evaluations. Teachers shall be deemed to have comparable evaluations when teachers are at the same rating under the Board evaluations policy.

Seniority, as used herein, shall be defined as including only continuous, unbroken teaching service in the Arcanum-Butler Local School District. A leave of absence does not eliminate nor add to seniority. Equal seniority shall occur when two (2) or more teachers have the same amount of seniority as determined on the seniority lists. Ties in seniority shall be broken by the following method to determine the most senior:

- a) Teacher with first day worked in the district.
- b) Teacher with earliest date of hire.
- c) Teacher who was listed first in official Board minutes of the Board's action to hire teachers.
- **B.** A teacher, whose continuing contract is suspended, shall have the right of restoration to continuing service status if and when teaching positions become vacant or are created for which any of such teachers are or become qualified. No teacher whose continuing contract has been suspended pursuant to this Article shall lose that right of restoration to continuing service status by reason of having declined recall to a position that is less than full-time or, if the teacher was not employed full-time just prior to suspension of the teacher's continuing contract, to a position requiring a lesser percentage of full-time employment than the position the teacher last held while employed in the district or service center. Seniority shall not be the basis for rehiring a teacher, except when making a decision between teachers who have comparable evaluations.

Recall shall be limited to two (2) years from the effective date of the suspension of the teacher's contract. The Superintendent shall mail written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested if a teaching position becomes available for which the affected teacher has the right of recall. It is the responsibility of the teacher whose contract has been suspended to keep the Superintendent's office informed of a current address and telephone number during the two-year recall period. Failure on the part of the teacher to do so will negate the school district's responsibility to recall said teacher.

- **C.** In the event that a RIF occurs, the Board shall notify the Association and the teacher(s) involved of the impending RIF not less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date of implementation and shall provide written reasons for the RIF and a list of affected positions and teachers.
- **D.** The Board of Education agrees to explore alternatives to reductions in force with the Association if it becomes necessary to RIF teachers. This paragraph shall not limit in any way the Board's right to make a reasonable reduction as set forth in this agreement.

ARTICLE 15 - FAIR DISMISSAL PROCEDURE

A. Termination of Contract

Termination of a teacher's contract by the Board shall be in accordance with §3319.16 of the Ohio Revised Code. A teacher may appeal the Board's action to terminate his or her teaching contract pursuant to the procedures set forth in Ohio Revised Code §3319.16, but may not grieve such termination under Article 10 of this Agreement.

B. Non-Renewal of Limited Contract

- 1. The teacher will be notified by his/her Principal that said Principal intends to recommend the teacher's contract not to be renewed for the forthcoming school year.
- 2. Any recommendation for non-renewal by a Principal shall entitle the affected teacher the opportunity to meet with said Principal and/or the Superintendent prior to the recommendation being forwarded to the Board.
- 3. The affected teacher shall, upon written request, be granted an opportunity to speak to the Board of Education prior to the Board taking action on the recommendation for non-renewal. The meeting, at the option of the teacher, shall be in either an executive session or a regular open board meeting. The teacher may be accompanied by a representative of the Association at such a meeting.

C. Notification to Teacher Following Board Action

The Superintendent shall mail a written notice of the non-renewal by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the teacher at the address appearing for that teacher on the Treasurer's records. It is the responsibility of each teacher to keep a current address on file with the Treasurer and to make any necessary changes therein. Timely mailing of the notice of non-renewal (on or before June 1 following the Board's action to non-renew) shall be the Board's only obligation in serving such notice.

D. Evaluation of Teachers Under Limited Contracts

The Board evaluates teachers in accordance with State law and the standards-based statewide teacher evaluation framework adopted by the State Board of Education.

All teacher evaluations must be completed on or before May 1, with a written report of the evaluation results provided on or before May 10.

The Board evaluates teachers receiving effectiveness ratings of Accomplished on those teachers' most recent evaluations every three years, provided the teacher submits a self-directed Professional Growth Plan and the evaluator determines the teacher is making progress on that plan. Such evaluations are completed by May 1 of the evaluation year. Teachers evaluated on this basis are provided a written copy of their evaluation results by May 10 of the evaluation year. In years when an evaluation will not take place, one focused evaluation is carried out and at least one conference with the teacher will be held.

The Board evaluates teachers receiving effectiveness ratings of Skilled on those teachers' most recent evaluations every two years, provided the teacher and evaluator jointly develop a Professional Growth Plan and the evaluator determines the teacher is making progress on that plan. Biennial evaluations conducted under this policy are completed by May 1 of the evaluation year. Teachers evaluated on a biennial basis are provided a written copy of their evaluation results by May 10 of the evaluation year. In years when an evaluation will not take place, one focused observation is carried out and at least one conference with the teacher is held.

Annual evaluations of teachers who are on limited or extended limited contracts pursuant to State law and are under consideration for nonrenewal shall, in the final contract year, include at least three formal observations of at least 30 minutes each and classroom walkthroughs. Evaluations of all other teachers shall include at least two formal observations of at least 30 minutes each and classroom walkthroughs. Formal observations and classroom walkthroughs will be performed per the Board adopted evaluation of professional staff policy.

Non-renewal of limited contracts shall be in accordance with Ohio Revised Code §3319.11, except that the term "evaluation procedures" as used therein shall mean those procedures established in this Paragraph of this Agreement and not to the procedure specified in Ohio

Revised Code §3319.111. A teacher whose contract is non-renewed can appeal such non-renewal pursuant to Ohio Revised Code §3319.11, but may not grieve such non-renewal under Article 10 of this Agreement. The provisions of this section shall apply only to regular teaching contracts and not to supplemental contracts.

ARTICLE 16 - TEACHING CERTIFICATES/LICENSES

Teachers must promptly file with the local Superintendent a copy of all current teaching certificates/licenses when they are hired and when certificates/licenses are issued to them by the State Department of Education. BCI/FBI checks will be 100% Board paid for all employees.

ARTICLE 17 - LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

In accordance with Ohio Revised Code §3319.22, a Local Professional Development Committee (LPDC) shall be formed to establish and review the standards and requirements for obtaining and renewing temporary associate, provisional and professional educator licenses.

A. LPDC

An LPDC shall be established to decide equivalent activities toward Continuing Education Units (CEUs); develop a format for Individual Professional Development Plan (IPDP) Proposals for District-wide use; establish appropriate training in the IPDP process for all members; review breaches of confidentiality and to establish and implement an appeals procedure.

- 1. LPDC Membership: The LPDC shall be comprised of five (5) members. Three (3) shall be teachers and two (2) shall be administrators.
- 2. Teacher Members: Three (3) teacher members shall be selected by the Association.
- 3. Terms of Teacher Members: The term of teacher members shall be determined by the Association.
- 4. Vacancy: In the event there is a vacancy for a teacher member on the LPDC, a new member will be appointed by the Association to fulfill the vacant term.
- 5. LPDC Operating Procedures: Members of the LPDC shall elect a Chairperson at the first meeting. Additionally, the LPDC shall determine its operating procedures and meetings schedule by consensus. A quorum is one over half membership. Meetings shall be held when possible during the school day to keep District costs at a minimum. Where

consensus is not possible, a vote of simple majority of the full membership of the Committee shall be required for action.

6. Removal of a Member: Members of the LPDC serve at the pleasure of the appointing official and may be appointed and/or removed by the appointing official with just cause.

B. Teacher IPDP

In accordance with Ohio Revised Code §3319.22 and the Department of Education Regulation 3301-24-08, each educator who desires to fulfill the license renewal is responsible for the design of an IPDP subject to approval of the LPDC. The plan shall be based on the needs of the educator, the students, the school, and the District.

C. Appeals Process

The LPDC shall develop an appeals process.

D. Clerical Service

The Board shall be responsible for clerical and record keeping service for the LPDC.

E. The three (3) teacher members of the LPDC designated by the Association each shall be paid \$20.00 per hour for attending Committee meetings and handling clerical work for the Committee that occur outside the school day. This stipend shall not set a precedent for other District committees. The maximum amount of Committee meeting pay provided under this section shall not exceed \$600 per year.

F. Educational Expenses

The Board will set aside funds for each year of the contract to be used to reimburse teachers for college graduate courses that directly relate to the teacher's profession and teaching assignment. District administrators are not eligible for this reimbursement. Guidelines and procedures to be followed in obtaining reimbursement will be established by the LPDC. Individual reimbursements shall not exceed more than \$2,500 per contract year.

G. An employee must teach in the district for two (2) years following the earning of the coursework credit and tuition reimbursement or the employee must repay the Board the full amount of tuition reimbursement. This excludes retirees and loss of employment due to a reduction in force, nonrenewal or catastrophic illness. Any such reimbursements will be in addition to the educational expense fund amount as specified in Article 17F.

ARTICLE 18 - SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS

- A. Teachers, who are employed and are to be compensated by the Board for approved supplemental (or extended-time) duties in addition to regular teaching duties, shall be employed on "supplemental contracts". A supplemental contract shall automatically expire at the end of its terms without further action or notice by the Board of Education.
- **B.** Supplemental contracts shall include:
 - 1. Title of the supplemental contract.
 - 2. Amount of compensation.
 - 3. Duration of supplemental contract.
 - 4. Provision for teacher's signature.
- **C.** Filling Supplemental Positions

Posting and filling of positions shall be in accordance with Article 12 of this Agreement.

D. In the event the supplemental contract is not awarded to the certified/licensed staff member who held the position the previous year, a written reason will be given to that certified/licensed staff member. The reasons will be based upon the written job description.

ARTICLE 19 - SALARY NOTICES

Annually, not later than the first (1st) day of September, the Treasurer shall provide notice to each teacher who holds a contract valid for the succeeding school year as to the salary to be paid for such year. The salary indicated on the notice shall include the amount(s) for any and all supplemental contracts that exist for such teacher for the succeeding school year.

ARTICLE 20 - SEVERANCE

A. The following shall be applicable to the conversion of accumulated and unused sick leave at the time of retirement of a teacher.

B. Teachers Eligible for Conversion

"Teacher" as used in this Article is defined as any certificated/licensed employee covered hereunder who:

- 1. Has been employed by the Board continuously for a period of at least five (5) years prior to the date of retirement and has ten (10) or more years of service in the public schools of Ohio.
- 2. Accrues sick leave pursuant to the provision of the Revised Code of Ohio.
- 3. Is eligible to receive a retirement pension benefit as a result of employment by the Board pursuant to the provisions of the Revised Code of Ohio.
- 4. Retires from the employ of the Board after the effective date of this Agreement, and
- 5. Makes application with the Treasurer within ninety (90) days from his/her last payroll date.
- 6. Upon the death of a certificated/licensed employee eligible for retirement pay in accordance with the above formula, such retirement pay will be made to the employee's estate. The Treasurer will be responsible, after making certain that all eligibility requirements have been met, for notifying the employee's beneficiary. The employee's beneficiary may elect to receive the check in the next income tax year.

C. Conversion Factor

School Years	Accumulated Sick Leave	Severance Pay
2022-2025	284	71

D. Payment for sick leave on this basis shall be considered to eliminate all sick leave credit accrued by the teacher at that time. Payment shall be based on the teacher's rate of pay at the time of retirement. Such payment shall be made only once to any teacher.

E. Retirement Notification Incentive

- 1. A "Qualifying Teacher" is one who has completed thirty-five (35) years of service or a teacher who is sixty-five (65) years of age at the time of retirement.
- 2. In addition to severance pay, a Qualifying Teacher who retires will be granted a retirement notification incentive of \$5,000 in year 1 of the current contract, \$2,500 in year 2 of the contract, and \$2,500 in year 3 of the contract.
- 3. To receive this incentive, a Qualified Teacher:
 - a) \$5,000 Notification Incentive: Who has met the service credit requirement by June 30, 2023, must declare intention to retire by giving written notice to the Superintendent on or before February 1, 2023, and must retire no earlier than

the end of the 2022-2023 school year, and no later than the commencement of the 2023-2024 school year.

- \$2,500 Notification Incentive: Who has met the service credit requirement by June 30, 2024, must declare intention to retire by giving written notice to the Superintendent on or before February 1, 2024, and must retire no earlier than the end of the 2023-2024 school year, and no later than the commencement of the 2024-2025 school year.
- c) \$2,500 Notification Incentive: Who has met the service credit requirement by June 30, 2025, must declare intention to retire by giving written notice to the Superintendent on or before February 1, 2025, and must retire no earlier than the end of the 2024-2025 school year, and no later than the commencement of the 2025-2026 school year.
- 4. A Qualified Teacher who misses the February 1 deadline for any year of the duration of this contract forfeits his/her right to the incentive.
- 5. The Board will pay the incentive to Qualified Teachers in addition to and at the same time as their severance payment.
- 6. Each Qualified Teacher applying for the retirement incentive shall demonstrate by appropriate documentary evidence that application is being made within the prescribed time frame described in E. 3 above. Such evidence may include a certificate or letter to that effect by the retirement system under which the Qualified Teacher retires. It shall be the Qualified Teacher's responsibility to be aware of the qualifying criteria for this incentive program and related notification and retirement deadlines. Lack of knowledge or innocent errors shall not extend such deadlines.

ARTICLE 21 - SALARY SCHEDULES

A. Salary schedules for teachers covered hereunder shall be as set forth in Addenda A attached hereto and made a part hereof. In no event shall any salary schedule be less than State mandated minimums. The salary schedule shall be reflective of a 2.0% base salary increase in 2022-2023, 2.0% base salary increase in 2023-2024, and a 2.0% base salary increase in 2024-2025.

B. Longevity of Service

1. All employees who qualify for the longevity of service recognition award will receive a certificate and a check consisting of \$15.00 for each year of service as follows:

10 years	\$150.00
15 years	\$225.00
20 years	\$300.00
25 years	\$375.00
30 years	\$450.00
35 years	\$525.00

- The longevity of service recognition award will be based upon years of service with the Arcanum-Butler Schools. Initial qualification requires ten (10) years of service with the Arcanum-Butler Schools, followed by five (5) year increments ending at year thirty-five (35). A Board-approved leave of absence is not considered as a year of service for longevity awards.
- 3. Beginning on the school year immediately following the year in which a teacher completes thirty (30) years of total teaching experience and ending with the completion of thirty-five (35) years of total teaching experience, a bargaining unit member will receive an annual longevity stipend of \$2,000 in two (2) equal installments of \$1,000 payable at the end of each semester. Such payments shall be included in salary calculations for STRS retirement purposes. Teachers who are retired/rehired shall not be eligible to receive longevity stipends.

ARTICLE 22 - GROUP INSURANCE

A. Medical Insurance

 The Board shall purchase from a carrier licensed by the State of Ohio a comprehensive medical plan of insurance coverage for each certificated/licensed employee now or herein after employed and his/her family which meets or exceeds the specifications below. The Board agrees to pay twenty-nine percent (29%) of the premium after January 11, 2018 (29% of wages for those covered prior to January 11, 2018) for all parttime employees, and eighty percent (80%) of the policy premium of the Core plan for the full-time certificated/licensed staff. For the length of the current contract the employees will pay an increase in major medical premiums over twelve percent (12%) for each year.

Core Plan (Board pays 80%)

<u>Network</u>

90/10% co-insurance most expenses \$200 S/\$400 F deductibles \$1000 S/\$2000 F max. out-of-pocket \$25 office visit co-pay \$35 urgent care co-pay \$100 ER co-pay \$10/25/40 Rx co-pay Mail order Rx included (90-day supply) Unlimited lifetime maximum

<u>Non-network</u>

70/30% co-insurance most expenses \$400 S/\$800 F deductibles \$2000 S/\$4000 F max. out-of-pocket 30% after deductible \$35 urgent care co-pay \$100 ER co-pay Rx 50% minimum \$40

Unlimited lifetime maximum

High Deductible Plan (Board pays 90%)

Network

0% co-insurance after deductible \$2,000 S/\$4,000 F deductibles \$2,000 S/\$4,000 F max out-of-pocket No co-payments after deductible is met Unlimited lifetime maximum

Non-network

30% co-insurance after deductible \$4,000 S/\$8,000 F deductibles \$8,000 S/\$10,000 F max out-of-pocket No co-payments after deductible is met Unlimited lifetime maximum

High Deductible/Health Savings Account Plan - Board pays ninety percent (90%) of the premium and will contribute towards the Employee's Health Savings account. This network deductible will be funded fifty percent (50%) on January 1 for each year under the contract. The contributions will be made in two installments on the first pay of January and the second pay of September. *For the first year of the contract, the September 2022 contribution would only apply to new staff members with a qualifying HDHP and not returning staff who received the full year's contribution in January 2022.

Each plan will include single, family or employee + children options.

2. <u>Opt-Out Provision</u>: Full-time school district employees who currently carry medical insurance coverage through the school district or newly hired full-time employees may choose to opt out of the Board medical insurance program and receive an annual stipend of \$1,500 to be paid by February 20 following the declining of medical insurance during open enrollment in each policy year (policy year runs from January 1 through December 31). Payment of the opt-out stipend shall be made through payroll with applicable deductions made. Full-time school district employees with a spouse may

choose the opt-out provision for the spouse only, and carry a single or employee plus children plan and receive the annual stipend of \$1,500. Those employees who work less than a full work day will receive an equivalent percentage of the stipend (example: a teacher who works ½ day would receive \$750). The employee who intends to exercise the opt-out provision must notify the District Treasurer prior to the end of the open enrollment period of the applicable year or must notify the District Treasurer within 30 days of employment with the District.

In order to be reinstated in the school district plan, one of the following conditions must be met:

- a) An employee's qualifying "life-changing" event (such as divorce, death of a spouse, other involuntary loss of non-district insurance coverage, or other circumstance under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act) must occur which would preclude a need for medical insurance coverage through the school district.
- b) If the employee chooses to voluntarily re-enroll in the school district medical coverage plan without loss of coverage as described in (a) above, reinstatement may be only at the beginning of the next benefit year, and the employee must notify the District Treasurer prior to the end of the open enrollment period of the applicable year.
- 3. Spousal Coordination of Benefits

Applicable for any new enrollees to the District's medical insurance plan beginning July 1, 2019. Any spouse of an employee of the Arcanum-Butler Local School District who is eligible or later becomes eligible for benefits under his or her employer's medical or retiree health insurance plan is required to pay a fifty dollar (\$50) per pay surcharge in the form of a payroll deduction.

In order to certify that your spouse is or is not covered by a plan where he or she works, you must complete a Spousal Coordination of Benefit Policy Form if you are enrolled in Arcanum-Butler Schools medical insurance plan for family coverage.

Employees enrolled in the Board's medical insurance plan as of June 30, 2019 are considered "grandfathered".

B. Dental Care Insurance

The Board shall provide dental care insurance to teachers subject to the terms of the insurance contract with a carrier selected by the Board. The Board will pay 85% of the cost of such insurance for full-time certificated/licensed staff.

C. Vision Care Plan

The Board shall provide vision care insurance to teachers subject to the terms of the insurance contract with a carrier selected by the Board. The Board will pay 85% of the cost of such insurance for full-time certificated/licensed staff.

D. Life Insurance

The Board shall purchase group term life insurance in the amount of \$50,000 for each certificated/licensed employee plus an equal amount of accidental death and dismemberment coverage. The cost of the program shall be paid by the Board.

E. Section 125 Plan

- 1. The benefits provided to employees by Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Act of 1978 shall be made available to all employees of the bargaining unit.
- 2. Neither the employer nor the employee shall incur any fees for the set-up, enrollment, and administrative services provided.

ARTICLE 23 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

This Agreement is subject to all existing and applicable State or Federal laws and Board policies, provided that should any change be made in any State or Federal laws or Board policies which would be applicable and contrary to any provision contained herein, such provisions herein contained shall automatically be terminated and the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. The parties shall thereafter seek to agree upon substitute provisions that are in conformity with acceptable law. Should any provision or portion thereof of this Agreement be held unlawful and unenforceable by any court, legislative or administrative tribunal or competent jurisdiction, then such decision or legislation shall apply only to that specific provision or portion thereof. The parties will meet in a committee to discuss the abrogated provision and its impact on the Agreement. The remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 24 - NO STRIKE/LOCKOUT

A. It is agreed that during the term of this Agreement, there shall be no lockout on the part of the Board nor any strike, stoppage, slowdown or other interruption of work for any cause whatsoever by the employees or the Association.

- **B.** The Association agrees that it will not encourage, sanction or approve any strike, stoppage, slowdown, or other interruption of work during the term of this Agreement and the Association will actively discourage and publicly denounce any strike, stoppage, slowdown, or other interruption of work in violation of this Article.
- **C.** In the event the Association engages in any picketing, strike, work stoppage, or other interruption of work, it is expressly understood that the employees covered hereunder shall continue to work during any such activity as a condition of continued employment, without exception, and upon the request of the Superintendent or the Board.
- D. Any strike, stoppage, slowdown, refusal to work in violation of Paragraph C, or other interruption of work during the life of this Agreement shall constitute cause for discharge or other disciplinary measures of the employee or employees who participate therein or who are responsible, therefore.

ARTICLE 25 - NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE

- A. Either party wishing to modify or terminate the existing collective bargaining agreement (or negotiate a successor collective bargaining agreement) must notify the other party in writing of its offer to bargain collectively. To invoke such negotiations, the written notice must be given to the other party between February 1 and March 1 of the year in which the current collective bargaining agreement expires. Full negotiation proposals shall be exchanged by both parties on a mutually agreed upon date. No additional items may be added at a future time without mutual consent.
- **B.** The initiating party must also notify the State Employment Relations Board (SERB) of its offer to negotiate by submitting to SERB a copy of the written notice to the other party and a copy of the existing collective bargaining agreement.
- **C.** The first meeting between the negotiation teams shall be scheduled to be held on or before April 15 of the respective year. The initial meeting between negotiating teams shall be for organizational purposes only, with both teams being present. Teams will agree on bargaining "ground rules" and meeting times.
- D. The duty to bargain between the Board and the Association shall be limited to all matters pertaining to wages, hours or terms and other conditions of employment and the continuation, modification, or deletion of an existing provision of the collective bargaining agreement, except where stated otherwise in this agreement.

- **E.** As discussion items receive tentative agreement, they shall be reduced to writing and initialed by each party. Until all discussion meetings are completed, prior to or during each meeting, there shall be a mutually agreed-to time, place, and date for the next meeting.
- **F.** When tentative agreement is reached on the proposed complete contract, it shall be submitted to the Board and Association for formal approval. Both parties agree to act on formal approval within ten (10) calendar days of the conclusion of discussion.

G. Impasse Procedure

- 1. At any time during the bargaining process, the parties may mutually request mediation assistance through the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service to assist in resolving issues. Any costs for the use of such mediation service shall be shared equally by the parties. The use of such mediation shall be the exclusive impasse remedy used by the parties.
- 2. If one party believes that all efforts to reach agreement have been exhausted, that party may declare that an impasse exists.
- 3. Nothing contained herein shall restrict the rights of the Association as set forth in §4117.14(D)(2) of the Ohio Revised Code, provided that Association has given the Board and SERB a prior ten (10) day written notice of its intent to strike on or after the expiration date of this Agreement or on or after the date on which impasse is declared, whichever occurs later. Such notice shall contain the day and time that the action will commence; however, the parties may extend such date and time by written agreement. Such notice shall not be given prior to the declaration of impasse and the parties subsequently requesting mediation assistance.

ARTICLE 26 - NO REPRISALS

No reprisals shall be taken against employees, students, parents, Administrators or Board members by either party for actions or activities engaged in or refrained from in reaching this agreement. This includes but is not limited to, participation in collective bargaining, filing of Unfair Labor Practice charges, or community education activities.

ARTICLE 27 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2022and shall remain in effect through June 30, 2025.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands this _______

2022.

FOR: ARCANUM-BUTLER LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

FOR: ARCANUM-BUTLER CLASSROOM TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

, day of

ADDENDUM A-1 - 2022-2023 CERTIFIED SALARY SCHEDULE

2% BASE INCREASE and STEPS, BASE \$40,651

ARCANUM-BUTLER

YEARS EXP		NON-DEG	BA DEG	5 YEARS	MA DEG	MA +20
				(150 Sem Hrs)		
		0.035	0.04	0.045	õ 0.05	0.05
0	Ş	36,586	\$ 42,277	\$ 44,106	\$ 46,749	
		0.900	1.040	1.085	i 1.150	
1	\$	36,586	\$ 42,277	\$ 44,106	\$ 46,749	
		0.900	1.040	1.085	i 1.150	
2	\$	38,009	\$ 43,903	\$ 45,936	\$ 48,781	
	_	0.935	1.080	1.130	1.200	
3	\$	39,431	\$ 45,529	\$ 47,765	\$ 50,814	
		0.970	1.120	1.175	1.250	1.310
4	\$	40,854	\$ 47,155	\$ 49,594	\$ 52,846	\$ 55,285
		1.005	1.160	1.220	1.300	1.360
5	\$	42,277	\$ 48,781	\$ 51,424	\$ 54,879	\$ 57,318
	_	1.040	1.200	1.265	1.350	1.410
6	\$	43,700	\$ 50,407	\$ 53,253	\$ 56,911	\$ 59,350
		1.075	1.240	1.310	1.400	1.460
7	\$	45,123	\$ 52,033	\$ 55,082	\$ 58,944	\$ 61,383
		1.110	1.280	1.355	i 1.450	1.510
8			\$ 53,659	\$ 56,911	\$ 60,977	\$ 63,416
			1.320	1.400	1.500	1.560
9			\$ 55,285	\$ 58,741	\$ 63,009	\$ 65,448
			1.360	1.449	i 1.550	1.610
10			\$ 56,911	\$ 60,570	\$ 65,042	\$ 67,481
			1.400	1.490	1.600	1.660
11			\$ 58,537	\$ 62,399	\$ 67,074	\$ 69,513
			1.440	1.535	i 1.650	1.710
12			\$ 60,163	\$ 64,229	\$ 69,107	\$ 71,546
			1.480	1.580	1.700	1.760
13			\$ 61,790	\$ 66,058	\$ 71,139	\$ 73,578
			1.520	1.625	i 1.750	1.810
14					\$ 73,172	\$ 75,611
					1.800	1.86
17			\$ 62,603	\$ 66,973	\$ 74,188	\$ 76,627
			1.540	1.6475	i 1.825	1.88
20			\$ 63,416	\$ 67,887	\$ 75,204	\$ 77,643
			1.560	1.670		
25			\$ 64,229	\$ 68,700	\$ 77,237	\$ 81,302
			1.580			

Pay Step 1 and Pay Step 2 are to be set at the same base with that base being the equivalent of Pay Step 2 for NON-DEGREE, BA DEG, 5 YEARS and MA DEG. (Teachers in the first two (2) years of teaching would earn the same amount but they would start off at a higher salary.)

ADDENDUM A-2 - 2023-2024 CERTIFIED SALARY SCHEDULE

2% BASE INCREASE and STEPS, BASE \$41,464

YEARS EXP	NON-DEG	BA DEG		5 YEARS		MA DEG		MA +20
				(150 Sem Hrs)				
	0.035	0.04	-	0.045		0.05		0.05
0	\$ 37,318	\$ 43,123	\$	44,988	\$	47,684		
	0.900	1.040)	1.085		1.150		
1	\$ 37,318	\$ 43,123	\$	44,988	\$	47,684		
	0.900	1.040		1.085		1.150		
2	\$ 38,769	\$ 44,781	\$	46,854	\$	49,757		
	 0.935	1.080		1.130		1.200		
3	\$ 40,220	\$ 46,440	\$	48,720	\$	51,830	\$	54,318
	 0.970	1.120		1.175		1.250		1.310
4	\$ 41,671	\$ 48,098	\$	50,586	\$	53,903	\$	56,391
	 1.005	1.160		1.220		1.300		1.360
5	\$ 43,123	\$ 49,757	Ş	52,452	\$	55,976	\$	58,464
	 1.040	1.200		1.265		1.350		1.410
6	\$ 44,574	\$ 51,415	\$	54,318	\$	58,050	Ş	60,537
	 1.075	1.240		1.310		1.400		1.460
7	\$ 46,025	\$ 53,074	\$	56,184	\$	60,123	\$	62,611
	1.110	1.280		1.355		1.450		1.510
8		\$ 54,732	\$	58,050	\$	62,196	\$	64,684
		1.320		1.400		1.500		1.560
9		\$ 56,391	\$	59,915	\$	64,269	\$	66,757
		1.360		1.445		1.550		1.610
10		\$ 58,050	Ş	61,781	\$	66,342	\$	68,830
		1.400		1.490		1.600		1.660
11		\$ 59,708	Ş	63,647	\$	68,416	Ş	70,903
		1.440		1.535		1.650		1.710
12		\$ 61,367	\$	65,513	\$	70,489	\$	72,977
		1.480		1.580		1.700		1.760
13		\$ 63,025	\$	67,379	\$	72,562	\$	75,050
		1.520		1.625		1.750		1.810
14					\$	74,635	\$	77,123
						1.800		1.860
17		\$ 63,855	\$	68,312	\$	75,672	\$	78,160
		1.540		1.6475		1.825		1.88
20		\$ 64,684	Ş	69,245	\$	76,708	Ş	79,196
		1.560		1.670		1.850		1.91
25		\$ 65,513	\$	70,074	\$	78,782	\$	82,928
		1.580		1.690		1.900		2.000

Pay Step 1 and Pay Step 2 are to be set at the same base with that base being the equivalent of Pay Step 2 for NON-DEGREE, BA DEG, 5 YEARS and MA DEG. (Teachers in the first two (2) years of teaching would earn the same amount but they would start off at a higher salary.)

ARCANUM-BUTLER

ADDENDUM A-3 – 2024-2025 CERTIFIED SALARY SCHEDULE

YEARS EXP		NON-DEG		BA DEG		5 YEARS		MA DEG		MA +20
						(150 Sem Hrs)				
	_	0.035		0.04		0.045		0.05		0.05
0	Ş	38,064	Ş	43,985	Ş	45,888	\$	48,637		
		0.900		1.040		1.085		1.150		
1	Ş	38,064	Ş	43,985	\$	45,888	\$	48,637		
		0.900		1.040		1.085		1.150		
2	\$	39,544	\$	45,676	\$	47,791	\$	50,752		
	_	0.935		1.080		1.130		1.200		
3	Ş	41,024	\$	47,368	\$	49,694	\$	52,866	\$	55,404
		0.970		1.120		1.175		1.250		1.310
4	Ş	42,504	Ş	49,060	\$	51,597	\$	54,981	\$	57,518
		1.005		1.160		1.220		1.300		1.360
5	Ş	43,985	\$	50,752	Ş	53,501	\$	57,096	\$	59,633
		1.040		1.200		1.265		1.350		1.410
6	Ş	45,465	Ş	52,443	Ş	55,404	\$	59,210	\$	61,748
		1.075		1.240		1.310		1.400		1.460
7	\$	46,945	\$	54,135	\$	57,307	\$	61,325	\$	63,862
		1.110		1.280		1.355		1.450		1.510
8			\$	55,827	\$	59,210	\$	63,440	\$	65,977
				1.320		1.400		1.500		1.560
9	-		\$	57,518	Ş	61,113	\$	65,554	\$	68,092
				1.360		1.445		1.550		1.610
10			\$	59,210	Ş	63,017	\$	67,669	Ş	70,206
				1.400		1.490		1.600		1.660
11			Ş	60,902	Ş	64,920	\$	69,783	\$	72,321
				1.440		1.535		1.650		1.710
12	-		\$	62,594	Ş	66,823	\$	71,898	\$	74,436
				1.480		1.580		1.700		1.760
13	+		\$	64,285	Ş	68,726	Ş	74,013	\$	76,550
				1.520		1.625		1.750		1.810
14							Ş	76,127	Ş	78,665
								1.800		1.860
17			\$	65,131	\$	69,678	\$	77,185	\$	79,722
				1.540		1.6475		1.825		1.885
20			Ş	65,977	Ş	70,629	\$	78,242	\$	80,780
				1.560		1.670		1.850		1.910
25			\$	66,823	Ş	71,475	Ş	80,357	\$	84,586
				1.580		1.690		1.900		2.000

2% BASE INCREASE and STEPS, BASE \$42,293

Pay Step 1 and Pay Step 2 are to be set at the same base with that base being the equivalent of Pay Step 2 for NON-DEGREE, BA DEG, 5 YEARS and MA DEG. (Teachers in the first two (2) years of teaching would earn the same amount but they would start off at a higher salary.)

ADDENDUM B- EXTRA-CURRICULAR SALARY SCHEDULE

The salary is determined by multiplying the index times the base on the Teacher's Salary Schedule for the applicable school year.

NOTE: All coaches are directly responsible to the Athletic Director and the head coach in that sport so that there is a correlation of the program. If the Administration and Board of Education decide there are not enough student participants to adequately have a program, the activity will be dropped for that particular year.

Supplemental contracts may be divided between two or more individuals, and the Board reserves the right to add or delete positions or to not fill a supplemental position set forth herein.

			EXPE	RIENCE	
POSITION	0	1	2	3	4
	.16	.165	.17	.175	.18
Varsity Basketball (Boys)					
Varsity Basketball (Girls)					
Varsity Football					
	.13	.135	.14	.145	.15
H. S. Band Director					
	.110	.115	.12	.125	.13
Junior Varsity Basketball (Boys)					
Asst. H.S. Football (3)					
Junior Varsity Basketball (Girls)					
	.105	.110	.115	.120	.125
Varsity Volleyball					
H.S. Wrestling	0.05	4.0.0	4.05		
U.S. Green County (Dour and Cirle)	.095	.100	.105	.110	.115
H.S. Cross County (Boys and Girls)					
Assistant Athletic Director	.085	.09	.095	.100	.105
Varsity Track (Boys and Girls)	.065	.09	.095	.100	.105
Varsity Baseball					
Varsity Softball					
M.S. Football					
H.S. Swimming					
HS Gymnastics	.075	.08	.085	.09	.095
H.S. Yearbook (Arcette)	.075	.08	.065	.09	.095
Golf (Boys)					
Golf (Girls)					
Junior Varsity Volleyball					
			EXPE	RIENCE	
POSITION	0	1	2	3	4
	.06	.065	.07	.075	.08
Head Middle School Track (Boys & Girls)					

Director High School Drama	.055	.06	.065	.07	.075
9 th Grade Basketball (Boys)					
Junior Varsity Softball					
Asst. H.S. Track (Boys & Girls) (2)					
Junior Varsity Baseball Junior Class Advisor					
Senior Class Advisor					
Assistant Varsity Basketball (Boys)					
Assistant Varsity Basketball (Girls)					
Strength Coach					
oth Charles Classes And Lines	.05	.055	.06	.065	.07
8 th Grade Class Advisor 8 th Grade Basketball (Boys)					
7 th Grade Basketball (Boys)					
8 th Grade Basketball (Girls)					
7 th Grade Basketball (Girls)					
M.S. Cross Country					
M.S. Wrestling					
Director Middle School Drama					
7th Grade Volleyball					
8th Grade Volleyball H.S. Vocal Music					
M.S. Band					
	.04	.045	.05	.055	.06
Assistant Middle School Football					
Assistant Middle School Track (Boys & Girls)					
H.S. Football Cheerleading					
H.S. Basketball Cheerleading					
Colorguard H.S./M.S. Percussion					
Assistant H.S. Drama					
	.03	.035	.04	.045	.05
H.S. Student Council					
H.S. Student Mentorship Program					
National Honor Society					
Concession Stand SADD Club					
H.S. Academic Team					

			EXPE	RIENCE	
POSITION	0	1	2	3	4
	.03	.035	.04	.045	.05
M. S. Academic Team					
Science Club					
District/Community STEM Coach					
Destination Imagination					
M.S. Student Council					
M.S. Yearbook					
Assistant M.S. Musical/Play					
Elementary Student Council					
FCCLA Advisor					
Renaissance Program Coordinator					
6 th Grade Class Advisor					
7 th Grade Class Advisor					
Art Club					
Science Fair Coordinator					
Freshman Class Advisor					
Sophomore Class Advisor					
	.025	.03	.035	.04	.045
H.S. Intramurals					
M.S. Football (Fall) Cheerleading					
M.S. Basketball (Winter) Cheerleading					
Detention (High School, Middle School, Elementary)	\$20.0)0 per h	our		
Wednesday School)0 per h			
Intervention Assistance Team Member	-)0 per h			
(Core team members only; limit 4 per school)	<i>Υ</i> 20.0	o per n	loui		
District Leadership Team	\$20.0)0 per h	our		
			loui		
Summer School	\$35.0)0 per h	our		
Tutor	\$30.0	00 per h	our		
Intervention	\$30.0)0 per h	our		
Athletic Site Manager	\$50.0)0 per e	vent		
			. Circ		

ADDENDUM C – GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM

Level 1 (Informal) Date of occurrence of grievance/complair Date of informal discussion:	nt:
Formal Level: Level 2	
Statement of the grievance (including the provisimisinterpreted, or misapplied):	on of the Master Agreement that has been violated,
Relief Sought:	
Grievant:	
Hearing Date:	
·	
Administrator:	
Level 3 Statement of grievance (include provision of Master	Agreement):
Grievant:	Date Submitted:
Response of Superintendent:	
Superintendent:	
Level 4 Date of Association Demand for Arbitration:	
Arcanum-Butler CTA 2022-2025	Revised 7-1-19

ADDENDUM D – SICK LEAVE FORM

	endur	nD	ARCANUM-BUTLER LOC Sick Leave		SICK
Pay	Pe	riod of Absence(s)		to	
la	me	of Person Absent			
Dat	e(s) of Absence			
lu	mbe	er of Days Absent			
lea	sor	n for Absence(s)			
ig	ned			Date _	
Ĉ	7				
		k Leave	Article 11-L	eave	
		completed service, unless on a leave lation listed below. Half-time teache	the second se	ortion of the above benef	the second term of the second s
	1.	Uses. For absences due to personal i birth, injury, exposure to contagious dental appointments, when such can teacher's immediate family. The imm father, grandchild, mother-in-law, fa daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, siste manent resident of the teacher's hou limited to up to ten (10) consecutive attend such funeral shall be limited t	illness, any disabling com disease which could be o mot be scheduled during mediate family shall be do ther-in-law, brother, siste er-in-law, aunt, uncle, nie usehold. Leave to attend school days. Regarding to o five (5) consecutive sch	plications of pregnancy or communicated to other en non-working hours, and t efined as the teacher's mo er, husband, wife, child, st ece, nephew, foster parent the funeral of a teacher's the remainder of the teach	ployees or to students, medical o o illness, injury or death in the other, father, grandmother, grand- ep-parent or step-child, son or t or child, or person living as a per- husband, wife, or child shall be her's immediate family, leave to
	2.	mentioned above, the leave shall be way and three (3) days if it is more th official residence as is on the record shall be the responsibility of the emp the teacher's principal whenever pos Responsibility. All teachers shall be	han 200 miles one way. I in the Central Office to the ployee. An estimate of the ssible. Sick leave must be	Distance shall be calculate he funeral of the deceased he length of time the teach e taken in one-half or who	d from the employee's current person. Proof of such distance er will be off must be provided to le day increments.
	2.	way and three (3) days if it is more the official residence as is on the record shall be the responsibility of the emp the teacher's principal whenever pose <u>Responsibility</u> . All teachers shall be re- is to be used. Failure to notify the ap- illness will be required for more than trator or his/her designee no later the each day during school hours if a sub- form for the use of sick leave no later	han 200 miles one way. It in the Central Office to the ployee. An estimate of the ssible. Sick leave must be responsible for notifying popropriate person is group in five (5) successive days an 7:00 a.m. when sick leave sstitute will be needed the r than five (5) days follow	Distance shall be calculate the funeral of the deceased the length of time the teach te taken in one-half or who their Building Principal or ands for denial of benefits. of sick leave. Teachers are teave is to be used. The pri- te following day. All teach ving the last day leave is u	d from the employee's current person. Proof of such distance er will be off must be provided to le day increments. his/her designee when sick leave A doctor's note verifying persona e to contact their Building Adminis ncipal's office should be notified ers are to complete a sick leave sed.
	2.	way and three (3) days if it is more the official residence as is on the record shall be the responsibility of the emp the teacher's principal whenever pose <u>Responsibility</u> . All teachers shall be re- is to be used. Failure to notify the ap- illness will be required for more than trator or his/her designee no later the each day during school hours if a sub- form for the use of sick leave no later <u>False Claim</u> . No payment of salary on	han 200 miles one way. It in the Central Office to the ployee. An estimate of the ssible. Sick leave must be responsible for notifying opropriate person is group in five (5) successive days an 7:00 a.m. when sick leave stitute will be needed the r than five (5) days follow r benefits will be made for	Distance shall be calculate the funeral of the deceased the length of time the teach te taken in one-half or who their Building Principal or ands for denial of benefits. of sick leave. Teachers are teave is to be used. The pri- te following day. All teach ving the last day leave is us or an unauthorized absence	d from the employee's current person. Proof of such distance er will be off must be provided to le day increments. his/her designee when sick leave A doctor's note verifying persona to contact their Building Adminis ncipal's office should be notified ers are to complete a sick leave sed. e and/or abuse of sick leave bene-
	3.	way and three (3) days if it is more the official residence as is on the record shall be the responsibility of the emp the teacher's principal whenever pose <u>Responsibility</u> . All teachers shall be re- is to be used. Failure to notify the ap- illness will be required for more than trator or his/her designee no later the each day during school hours if a sub- form for the use of sick leave no later	han 200 miles one way. It in the Central Office to the polyee. An estimate of the ssible. Sick leave must be responsible for notifying popropriate person is group in five (5) successive days an 7:00 a.m. when sick leave stitute will be needed the r than five (5) days follow r benefits will be made for or sick leave abuse may bo or a newly employed teav aid advance shall be char	Distance shall be calculate the funeral of the deceased the length of time the teach the taken in one-half or who their Building Principal or ands for denial of benefits. of sick leave. Teachers are eave is to be used. The pri- te following day. All teach ving the last day leave is us or an unauthorized absence the considered as grounds for the who has not accumu ged against the sick leave	d from the employee's current person. Proof of such distance er will be off must be provided to le day increments. his/her designee when sick leave A doctor's note verifying persona e to contact their Building Adminis ncipal's office should be notified ers are to complete a sick leave sed. e and/or abuse of sick leave bene- or disciplinary action. lated sick leave credits, shall be he/she subsequently accumulates

ADDENDUM E – PERSONAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM

Addendum E

ARCANUM-BUTLER LOCAL SCHOOLS Personal Leave Request Form



Date(s) of Requested Leave _____ Total Days _

Employee _____

		Article 11—Leave								
C.	Per	Personal Leave								
	1.	Subject to the conditions set forth herein, all teachers covered hereunder shall be eligible to receive up to four (4) days of personal leave each school year without loss of salary. The personal leave days granted under the provisions above shall be in addition to any earned sick leave benefits to which a teacher may be entitled and shall not be charged against any sick leave accumulation which may have accrued.								
	2.	Use of Personal Leave. Such personal leave must be taken in one-half or whole day increments. All personal leave will be considered unrestricted personal leave days, except that such unrestricted days may not be used for job hunting or working for pay.								
	3.	Application for Personal Leave. The notice of intent to use personal leave shall be submitted to the Principal/Supervisor for approv al not less than three (3) days prior to the date of use, except in the case of an emergency. Personal leave shall not be unreasona bly denied.								
	4.	Restrictions on the Use of Personal Leave. Personal leave may not be taken, except in emergency or other situations as determined by the Superintendent or his/her designee: On the last work day before or the first work day after any holiday. On the last work day before or the first work day after any approved vacation. During the ten (10) calendar days immediately prior to and the ten (10) calendar day period after the opening or closing days of any school year. When ten percent (10%) of the total staff on any given date is absent unless extenuating circumstances merit ap proval by the Superintendent. Leave requests hereunder shall not be unreasonably denied. e) Not to be taken in succession of more than two (2) days.								
	5.	Any abuse of the personal leave benefits may constitute just cause for disciplinary action.								
	6.	Should the school be closed during the period of a teacher's personal leave by an "emergency day" as called by the Superinten- dent, such teacher will not be charged with a personal day, if there has been no cost to the Board.								
	7.	Compensation for unused personal leave: Unused personal leave will be reimbursed at a rate of \$100.00 per day.								
	8.	A bargaining unit member may choose, in lieu of receiving a bonus for not using personal leave, to the conversion of unused per- sonal leave to sick leave. If an employee chooses sick leave conversion, that employee may convert up to four (4) personal days, including half days. The employee must notify the District Treasurer of their choice of personal leave conversion to sick leave by May 15. Any discrepancy or day used after May 15 will be subtracted from the days to be converted.								

My signature on this document affirms that my use of personal leave is in accordance with Board Policy. I understand that abuse of Board Personal Leave Policy may result in disciplinary action.

**Have immediate supervisor sign original form and send to Superintendent's Office for approval/disapproval. Copies will be made and sent to the treasurer, supervisor, and employee.

Employee's Signatur	re		Date	
Supervisor's Signatu	ire		Date	_
Approved	Denied	Reason, if not approved		
Superintendent's Sig	gnature		Date	;
				Revised 7.1.22

ADDENDUM E1 – PERSONAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM WITHOUT PAY

Adde	endun	n D	ARCANUM-BUTLER LOC Sick Leave		SICK
Pay	Pe	riod of Absence(s)		to	
Var	me	of Person Absent			
Dat	te(s)	of Absence			
lui	mbe	er of Days Absent			
Rea	sor	o for Absence(s)			
Sig	ned	<u></u>		Date	
			Article 11-L	eave	
	1.	Accumulation. A full-time teacher sh completed service, unless on a leave lation listed below. Half-time teacher Uses. For absences due to personal i birth, injury, exposure to contagious dental appointments, when such can teacher's immediate family. The imm father, grandchild, mother-in-law, fai daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, show limited to up to ten (10) consecutive attend such funeral shall be limited to	of absence, or a total of rs shall have a pro rata p Maximum Accumulation <u>School Year</u> 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 illness, any disabling com disease which could be c not be scheduled during mediate family shall be de ther-in-law, brother, siste er-in-law, aunt, uncle, nie usehold. Leave to attend school days. Regarding to o five (5) consecutive sch	fifteen (15) days per year, subje ortion of the above benefits. of Sick Leave Days <u>Maximum Days</u> 284 284 284 284 plications of pregnancy or child communicated to other employe non-working hours, and to illne efined as the teacher's mother, er, husband, wife, child, step-pa ece, nephew, foster parent or ch the funeral of a teacher's husb the remainder of the teacher's i tool days. To attend the funeral	birth, recovery from child- ees or to students, medical or ess, injury or death in the father, grandmother, grand- irent or step-child, son or hild, or person living as a per- and, wife, or child shall be mmediate family, leave to of any other relative not
	2.	way and three (3) days if it is more the official residence as is on the record is shall be the responsibility of the emp the teacher's principal whenever pose <u>Responsibility</u> . All teachers shall be r is to be used. Failure to notify the ap illness will be required for more than trator or his/her designee no later the each day during school hours if a sub form for the use of sick leave no later	an 200 miles one way. It in the Central Office to the loyee. An estimate of the esponsible for notifying to popopriate person is grout five (5) successive days an 7:00 a.m. when sick le stitute will be needed th	Distance shall be calculated from the funeral of the deceased person the length of time the teacher will taken in one-half or whole day their Building Principal or his/hunds for denial of benefits. A do of sick leave. Teachers are to co teave is to be used. The principal e following day. All teachers are	n the employee's current on. Proof of such distance Il be off must be provided to r increments. er designee when sick leave ctor's note verifying personal ontact their Building Adminis- l's office should be notified
	3.	False Claim. No payment of salary or fits. An unauthorized absence and/o	benefits will be made for	or an unauthorized absence and	
	4.		or a newly employed tea aid advance shall be char	cher who has not accumulated ged against the sick leave he/sh	sick leave credits, shall be e subsequently accumulates
	5.	Emergency Closing. Should the school holiday, as called by the Superintend	ols be closed during the	period of a teacher's sick leave l	by an "emergency" day or

ADDENDUM E-2 – REQUEST FOR UNUSED PERSONAL LEAVE TO BE CONVERTED TO SICK LEAVE: MAXIMUM 4 DAYS

Employee Name (please print)

Personal Day Balance as of May 15, 20_____

Number of Personal Days to be converted to Sick Leave

I, the above named employee, certify that the above information is complete and accurate. I understand that any discrepancy or day used after May 15, 20_____, will be subtracted from the days to be converted.

Employee Signature

Date:

OFFICE USE ONLY							
Number of Personal Days remaining	Reviewed by	Date					

ADDENDUM F – PROFESSIONAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM

	ARCAN	NUM-BUTLER LOCAL SCHO	OLS	
	Profession	nal Leave Requ	est Form	
me of Teacher or I	Employee			
eeting Date(s)			Total Days	
eeting and Location	n			
rpose of Meeting				
	or Athletic Department purpos e Superintendent. Copies will b			
hletic Director's Signature, if	applicable			Date
pervisor's Signature				Date
perintendent's Signature				Date
Complete BEFORE subr	mitting Professional Leave Requ on after meeting occurs. This in nent.		ed expenses to be paid by	participant and reimburse
by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen	on after meeting occurs. This in nent.	cludes participant pay	ed expenses to be paid by	participant and reimburse
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen Transportation:	on after meeting occurs. This in	cludes participant pay	ed expenses to be paid by	participant and reimburse
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen	on after meeting occurs. This in nent. miles @ Max \$135 per night	cludes participant pay	ed expenses to be paid by	participant and reimburse
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen Transportation: Lodging:	on after meeting occurs. This in nent miles @	cludes participant pay	ed expenses to be paid by	participant and reimburse
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen Transportation: Lodging: Meals:	on after meeting occurs. This in nent. miles @ Max \$135 per night Max \$50 per day	cludes participant pay	ed expenses to be paid by	participant and reimburse
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen Transportation: Lodging: Meals: Parking Fee:	on after meeting occurs. This in nent. miles @ Max \$135 per night Max \$50 per day	cludes participant pay	ed expenses to be paid by	participant and reimburse
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen Transportation: Lodging: Meals: Parking Fee: Registration Fee: Total To be completed AFTER List actual expenses ind	on after meeting occurs. This in nent. miles @ Max \$135 per night Max \$50 per day	cludes participant pay	ed expenses to be paid by ing registration fee and co	participant and reimburse ompleting purchase order in
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen Transportation: Lodging: Meals: Parking Fee: Registration Fee: Total To be completed AFTER List actual expenses ind	on after meeting occurs. This in nent. miles @ Max \$135 per night Max \$50 per day : R returning from meeting. curred and paid by participant to	cludes participant pay	ed expenses to be paid by ing registration fee and co	participant and reimburse ompleting purchase order in
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen Transportation: Lodging: Meals: Parking Fee: Registration Fee: Total To be completed AFTER List actual expenses ind to building secretary with	on after meeting occurs. This in nent. miles @ Max \$135 per night Max \$50 per day : R returning from meeting. curred and paid by participant to th itemized receipts attached.	cludes participant pay IRS rate be reimbursed by the	ed expenses to be paid by ing registration fee and co	participant and reimburse ompleting purchase order in
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen Transportation: Lodging: Meals: Parking Fee: Registration Fee: Total To be completed AFTEF List actual expenses ind to building secretary with Transportation:	on after meeting occurs. This in nent. miles @ Max \$135 per night Max \$50 per day : R returning from meeting. curred and paid by participant to th itemized receipts attached. miles @	cludes participant pay IRS rate be reimbursed by the	ed expenses to be paid by ing registration fee and co	participant and reimburse ompleting purchase order in
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen Transportation: Lodging: Meals: Parking Fee: Registration Fee: Total To be completed AFTEF List actual expenses ind to building secretary wit Transportation: Lodging:	on after meeting occurs. This in nent. miles @ Max \$135 per night Max \$50 per day : R returning from meeting. curred and paid by participant to th itemized receipts attached. miles @ Max \$135 per night	cludes participant pay IRS rate be reimbursed by the	ed expenses to be paid by ing registration fee and co	participant and reimburse ompleting purchase order in
Complete BEFORE subr by the Board of Educati advance for reimbursen Transportation: Lodging: Meals: Parking Fee: Registration Fee: Total To be completed AFTEF List actual expenses ind to building secretary wit Transportation: Lodging: Meals:	on after meeting occurs. This in nent. miles @ Max \$135 per night Max \$50 per day : R returning from meeting. curred and paid by participant to th itemized receipts attached. miles @ Max \$135 per night Max \$50 per day	cludes participant pay IRS rate be reimbursed by the	ed expenses to be paid by ing registration fee and co	participant and reimburse ompleting purchase order in

F. Professional Leave

- 1. At the discretion of the Superintendent, professional leave days may be granted for the purpose of attending professional meetings in connection with extra-curricular or instructional duties.
- 2. When granted, teachers will be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred subject to the maximums set forth below.
 - a) Travel Mileage reimbursement at the prevailing IRS rate for round trip mileage or air coach rate, whichever is approved.
 - b) Housing Not to exceed \$135.00 per night. Amounts in excess of this amount must be approved by Building Principal and Superintendent. Teachers are encouraged to share accommodations whenever possible.
 - c) Meals Not to exceed \$50.00 per day.
 - d) Parking fees, as required.
 - e) Registration fees, as required.
- 3. Application must be made on the approved form and signed by the Principal and Superintendent at least one (1) week in advance of the planned professional leave, unless otherwise waived by the Superintendent. All mileage and professional expenses shall be filed with the Treasurer no later than 30 days following the last date on which the expenses were incurred. The teachers shall include itemized receipts or bills for those expenditures for which reimbursement is requested.
- 4. Should the school be closed during the period of a teacher's professional meeting attendance by an "emergency day", as called by the Superintendent, such teacher will not be charged with a professional day, if the teacher is unable to attend the meeting and the Board has paid no money towards that meeting.

ADDENDUM F-1 - JURY DUTY LEAVE

ADDENDUM F-1

JURY DUTY LEAVE

For pay period beginning	and ending	
Name of person absent		
Date(s) absent		
Number of days absent		
Signed	Date of report	

An employee shall be released from all duties and responsibilities at the school when is appointed to serve as a juror or court subpoenaed witness, and such services conflict with school duties. This is to be in effect only as long as the employee is on the jury or required to appear as a subpoenaed witness. The employee shall be paid the difference between regular salary and the remuneration received for serving as a juror or subpoenaed. Such leave shall not be deducted from any other type of leave. (See Master Contract, Article 11)

Customary practice is to turn in the endorsed check/cash from the Court to the Treasurer's Office. There will be no deduction from payroll if funds are received.

Revised 7.1.16